
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

JUNE 16, 2020 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
DOUGLAS HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
MARYANN HALLSTEIN 
 
1. Call to Order Regular City Council Work Session: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of June 2, 2020 City Council Meeting (3) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (6) 

 Claims  $  245,102.90 
 Payroll   $      9,566.90 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,983.26 
 Other Claims  $      2,653.23 
 Total Claims     $  261,306.29 

c. Res No 06-16-20-59 – Approving Purchase of Barrier Shields (42) 
d. Res No 06-16-20-60 – Calling for the Redemption of the Outstanding (43) 

 
4. 2021 Preliminary Budget – Draft 1 (47) 

 
5. Review: COVID-19 Preparedness Plan (61) 

 
6. Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 

 
7. Reports 
 
8. Adjournment 



 
 
 

 

To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  June 12, 2020 
 
Re:  Review of June 16, 2020 City Council Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 7:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: See enclosed consent agenda. 

a. Approve Minutes of June 2, 2020 City Council Meeting (3) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (6) 

 Claims  $  245,102.90 
 Payroll   $      9,566.90 
 P/R taxes & Exp. $      3,983.26 
 Other Claims  $      2,653.23 
 Total Claims     $  261,306.29 

c. Res No 06-16-20-59 – Approving Purchase of Barrier Shields (42) 
d. Res No 06-16-20-60 – Calling for the Redemption of the Outstanding (43) 

This is recommended because 2020 is the last year scheduled to collect taxy levy to be used 
towards the pay off.  In reviewing current fund balance and anticipated levy collection, we will 
have sufficient funds by end of year to payoff the bond early, thus saving interest costs. 

 
4. 2021 Preliminary Budget – Draft 1 (47) 

Staff has prepared the first draft of the 2021 Preliminary Budget.  No major changes were identified 
within the operating budget.  The levy is experiencing a sizable increase to finish off the 
implementation of cash payment for majority of future capital expenditures. 
 

5. Review: COVID-19 Preparedness Plan (61) 
Enclosed is the previously adopted and amended COVID-19 Preparedness Plan.  We are now required 
to have a preparedness plan that addresses a number of operational procedures.  Enclosed is an 
amended plan for review that addresses the State’s plan requirements.  This is required by June 29th. 
 

6. Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) 
It is estimated Hanover is to receive $261,883 in funding to offset eligible expenses related to COVID-
19.  Any unused funds at year end would need to be returning to the Federal Government.  This funding 
is coming from the CARES Act. 



7. Reports 
 
8. Adjournment 



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 2, 2020 – DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, June 2, 2020 to order at 7:00 p.m.  Present 
were Mayor Chris Kauffman, Councilors Doug Hammerseng, Jim Zajicek and MaryAnn Hallstein.  Also 
present were City Attorney Jay Squires, City Administrator Brian Hagen and Accountant Jackie Heinz.  
Guests included Mat Meyer, Fire Chief Dave Malewicki and Brad O’Neil from the Crow River News.  
Absent was Ken Warpula.  
 
Approval of Agenda: 
MOTION by Hallstein to approve the agenda, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Hagen stated the 5/19/2020 Work Session Minutes have been corrected to show MaryAnn Hallstein as 
absent. 
Hagen added Res No 06-02-20-56 Approving Hire of Seasonal Public Works Employee as item e, Res 
No 06-02-20-57 Appointing Probationary Firefighter as item f and Res No 06-02-20-58 Appointing 
Probationary Firefighter as item g. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve the amended consent agenda, seconded by Zajicek. 

a. Approve Minutes of May 19, 2020 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $   31,215.11 
 Payroll   $     9,369.82 
 P/R taxes & Exp $     3,923.75 
 Other Claims  $     2,640.94 
 Total Claims     $   47,149.62 

c. Res No 06-02-20-52 – Approving Purchase of Tires for Fire Department Ranger 
d. Res No 06-02-20-53 – Approving Purchase of Fire Department Exercise Equipment 
e. Res No 06-02-20-56 – Approving Hire of Seasonal Public Works Employee 
f. Res No 06-02-20-57 – Appointing Probationary Firefighter Clifford Rippel 
g. Res No 06-02-20-58 – Appointing Probationary Firefighter Saera Cook 

Motion carried unanimously. 
 
Citizen’s Forum: 
Mat Meyer – 1027 Emerald Street NE 
Meyer stated he would like to install solar panels on his home, he is here to find what needs to be done.  
He has talked with City Planner Cindy Nash and feels he shouldn’t carry the burden of adding the 
ordinance to the City.  Hallstein stated the first step is to go through Planning Commission, the Council 
cannot discuss first.  Meyer stated Nash said there were two options, the first to have Council initiate the 
conversation or apply.  Squires stated the applicant shouldn’t have to pay to add an ordinance.  Kauffman 
stated to have the Planning Commission look at the ordinance.  Hagen stated solar panels were reviewed 
about 4 years ago and were not supported at the time, but opinions could have changed.  Hammerseng 
stated he remembers the discussions, there was talk of installing solar panels on the City Hall roof and 
decided it wasn’t cost effective, at the time no one was pushing so it was easy not to go there.   
 
Meyer stated he has read the 6 pages of the St. Michael ordinance on solar panels and is wondering how 
new signs being ran off solar is different.  Hallstein stated there are concerns about solar, even as green as 

3



it is, it isn’t green to dispose of, only 96% of the panel is recyclable and the remaining is considered 
hazardous waste which can’t be disposed of in MN, the closest disposable site being WI.  Kauffman 
inquired the size of the solar panels, Meyer stated 28 panels that are each 3’ x 6’.  Meyer inquired why 
the ordinance didn’t pass 4 years ago.  Kauffman stated no residents were pushing for it.  Hammerseng 
stated they are not cost effective.  Meyer stated he would be paid back within 5 years and plans to live 
here for 10 years.  Meyer further stated the solar company has gone through text amendments in the past 
and could help with the process.  Squires stated to have the Planning Commission discuss the subject and 
if there’s interest.  Kauffman asked Meyers if he has talked to his neighbors, Meyers stated no.  
Hammerseng stated they could be the push back and don’t want to look at the panels.  Meyers stated he 
will help in getting anything ready.  Hagen stated City Planner Nash has an example ordinance that can 
be tweaked for Hanover, Planning Commission can discuss at the June Meeting, could advertise for a 
public hearing at the July meeting and bring to Council the first meeting in August.  Council consensus to 
have the Planning Commission discuss a solar panel ordinance at their next meeting. 
 
Public Hearings: 
None 
 
Unfinished Business: 
None  
 
New Business: 

Res No 06-02-20-54 – Approving Conditional Use Permit for 9054 10th St SE 
Hagen stated applicant Kevin Luedemann is not present but has applied for a conditional use permit due 
to the accessory building being larger than the home.  Hallstein inquired when the building permit was 
pulled.  Hammerseng stated based on discussion Luedemann stated he thought a permit was needed based 
on what City staff had told him, he will pay a fine.  Hagen stated the fine will be an additional $1,000 give 
or take.  Hammerseng stated instead of opening a can of worms, he has agreed to the terms and we can 
move forward.  Hallstein stated she is upset Luedemann didn’t follow proper procedure.  Hagen stated if 
Luedemann would have applied on the front end, would it have been approved.  Hallstein stated not all 
permits are approved.  Hammerseng stated Planning Commission doesn’t disagree, but this was the best 
solution. 
MOTION by Hammerseng to approve Res No 06-02-20-54, seconded by Hallstein.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 

 
Res No 06-02-20-55 – Approving Non-Enforcement of Gov. Walz Executive Orders 

Kauffman stated we are in week 11 of the emergency powers for COVID, although it is not the focus these 
days, another message needs to be sent to the Governor that it is time.  Kauffman inquired if Albertville 
passed a similar resolution, Hagen stated no.  Kauffman stated two changes should be made, remove “law 
enforcement” in the final paragraph and change last sentence to “Gov. Walz’ COVID Emergency 
Executive Orders.”  Hammerseng stated he felt the resolution from Princeton was better written, why are 
we not using that one.  Hagen stated the resolution is generally stating the same thing, the amendment 
verbiage was removed.  Kauffman stated the City hasn’t spent resources yet and no one is following the 
recommended guidelines.   
 
Hallstein inquired what other cities are doing.  Kauffman stated using common sense such as face masks 
and sanitizing.  Hallstein stated as a Council member she does not support the resolution from the City.  
Kauffman stated it’s an opportunity to send a message the Governor needs to hear to allow more 
businesses to open.  Hammerseng stated he personally wrote a letter to Governor Walz with no response 
and supports this resolution.  Hammerseng further stated he wrote letters to Representative Kiffmeyer and 

4



Lucero and received responses from both.  Zajicek stated he agrees with Hammerseng, Council should 
send a message as a City.  Zajicek inquired on Squires opinion of the resolution.  Squires stated he has 
already weighed in, the City would be exposing themselves to liability, no one has a crystal ball to know 
what will happen in 2 months.  Kauffman stated Governor Walz has taken our individual rights and 
freedom, we are all adults.  Hallstein stated she is not disagreeing, Kiffmeyer and Lucero are responsive 
to items, but we shouldn’t put the City in a position for liability and doesn’t see how this is affecting our 
local businesses.  Hagen stated the temporary patio agreement is a positive way the City has used its’ 
resources to help local restaurants and meet the Governors Executive orders.  Kauffman stated we are the 
City of Hanover, which is a part of Minnesota, this resolution sends a message to the Governor.  Hallstein 
stated the restaurant industry is putting a response together with plans to move forward.  Kauffman stated 
in his personal opinion there is no emergency crisis anymore, now it’s the rioting, they have changed their 
focus.  Kauffman further stated the curfew and wearing masks is not being enforced.    
MOTION by Kauffman to approve Res No 06-02-20-55, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion passed 3:1 
Aye: Kauffman, Hammerseng, Zajicek 
Nay: Hallstein 
 
Reports  
 Heinz 

• The Hanover Harvest Festival has officially been cancelled with no plans to postpone 
• FYCC who coordinates Reading in the Park is asking for approval to spray paint 8’ 

diameter circles which are 6’ apart at Settlers Park for the event to take place.  Council 
consensus to approve request. 

Hagen 
• Public Works is crack filling, Council okay with possible overtime the next two weeks, 

council consensus yes 
• There will be an RFP coming for Mercantile Pass 
• The June Planning Commission meeting will be held via Zoom due to the number of public 

hearings on the agenda 
• In preparation for when Hall Rentals resume, should the renter be responsible to wipe down 

all used tables and chairs or the cleaner.  Council consensus to have the cleaner be 
responsible and pass fees onto the renter 

 
Adjournment 
MOTION by Hallstein to adjourn at 8:06 p.m., seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
        
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

5



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 1

Current Period: June 2020

Payment Batch 06-16-20 PAY $245,102.90

CENTERPOINT ENERGY Ck# 035026  6/16/2020Refer 2976
Cash Payment $112.59PW Building Gas Utilities: 04-27-2020 - 05-27-

2020
E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 5/29/2020
Cash Payment $74.91Fire Station Gas Utilities: 04-27-2020 - 05-27-

2020
E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities

Invoice 5/29/2020
Cash Payment $73.33City Hall Gas Utilities: 04-27-2020 - 05-27-2020E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 5/29/2020

$260.83TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

XCEL ENERGY Ck# 002965E 6/16/2020Refer 2977
Cash Payment $861.77Xcel Owned Street Lighting 05/03/2020 - 

06/02/2020
E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice 687215775 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $1,186.17City Owned Street Lighting 05/04/2020 - 

06/02/2020
E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities

Invoice 687215775 6/3/2020
$2,047.94TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

COTTENS, INC. Ck# 035030  6/16/2020Refer 2978
Cash Payment $22.49Utility 12: Power Switch Indicator LightE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 216214 5/14/2020
Cash Payment $159.99Utility 12: BatteryE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 216569 5/18/2020

$182.48TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

MCFOA Ck# 002966E 6/16/2020Refer 2979
Cash Payment $22.50J. Heinz - MCFOA Dues: 07/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions

Invoice
Cash Payment $22.50J. Heinz - MCFOA Dues: 01/01/2021 - 

06/30/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice

$45.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

MOOTZ, TODD & DEANN Ck# 035046  6/16/2020Refer 2980
Cash Payment $50.00Hall Rental Fee Returned - 6/12 & 6/13/2020 

Event Cancelled Due to COVID-19
R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue

Invoice
$50.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

BERGANKDV Ck# 035023  6/16/2020Refer 2981
Cash Payment $4,000.00Final Billing on the Audit of the Financial 

Statements for the Year Ended 12/31/2019
E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Servi

Invoice 1088366 6/3/2020
$4,000.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

HANOVER WINE & SPIRITS LLC Ck# 035037  6/16/2020Refer 2982
Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Returned - 05/08/2020 

Event Cancelled Due to COVID-19
E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice
Cash Payment $425.00Hall Rental Fee Returned - 05/08/2020 Event 

Cancelled Due to COVID-19
R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue

Invoice

6



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 2

Current Period: June 2020

$625.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

MASUDA, DELORES Ck# 035042  6/16/2020Refer 2983
Cash Payment $200.00Hall Damage Deposit Returned - 6/28/2020 

Event Cancelled Due to COVID-19
E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice
$200.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA Ck# 035051  6/16/2020Refer 2984
Cash Payment $5,262.00Sewer Services - July 2020E 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 90241105 6/15/2020
Cash Payment $3,749.00Water Services - June 2020E 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 90241105 6/15/2020

$9,011.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

NW HOMESCHOOL ATHLETIC CO Ck# 035047  6/16/2020Refer 2985
Cash Payment $50.00Hall Rental Deposit Returned - 5/31/2020 Event 

Cancelled Due to COVID-19
R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue

Invoice
Cash Payment $50.00Hall Rental Deposit Returned - 6/8/2020 Event 

Cancelled Due to COVID-19
R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue

Invoice
$100.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

MN PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHORIT Ck# 002967E 6/16/2020Refer 2986
Cash Payment $95,000.00MN PFA Bond - PrincipalE 602-47000-601 Debt Srv Bond Principal
Invoice
Cash Payment $1,087.75MN PFA Bond - InterestE 602-47000-611 Bond Interest
Invoice

$96,087.75TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

CITY OF ST. MICHAEL Ck# 002968E 6/16/2020Refer 2987
Cash Payment $5,136.00SAC Fee - 9919 Jordan AvenueE 602-49455-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice
Cash Payment $5,136.00SAC Fee - 9805 Jasmine AvenueE 602-49455-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice

$10,272.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

JOINT POWERS WATER BOARD Ck# 035039  6/16/2020Refer 2988
Cash Payment $2,001.00WAC Fee - 9919 Jordan AvenueE 601-49410-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice
Cash Payment $2,001.00WAC Fee - 9805 Jasmine AvenueE 601-49410-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice

$4,002.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVI Ck# 035043  6/16/2020Refer 2989
Cash Payment $120.84Pmt 8-18 @ 680 Kadler CircleE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $52.50Pmt 93-19 @ 10584 Rosedale AvenueE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $1,648.80Pmt 112-19 @ 500 Kadler AvenueE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $386.98Pmt 10-20 @ 690 Kadler CircleE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $149.58Pmt 13-20 @ 1036 Mallard Street NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020

7



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 3

Current Period: June 2020

Cash Payment $17.50Pmt 22-20 @ 990 Mallard Street NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $128.93Pmt 28-20 @ 9776 Jasmine Avenue NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $35.00Pmt 31-20 @ 11413 Crow River DriveE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $33.25Pmt 36-20 @ 1008 Mallard Street NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2448 6/1/2020

$2,573.38TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHREDE Ck# 035025  6/16/2020Refer 2990
Cash Payment $68.04Legal Support / Work - April & May 2020E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees
Invoice 5/28/2020

$68.04TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

COMCAST Ck# 035028  6/16/2020Refer 2991
Cash Payment $152.99CH: Digital voice & Internet - June 2020E 100-41940-321 Telephone
Invoice 5/25/2020

$152.99TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

THE HARTFORD Ck# 002969E 6/16/2020Refer 2992
Cash Payment $194.52STD & LTD - June 2020G 100-21707 Life Ins
Invoice 729242932692 6/1/2020

$194.52TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA Ck# 035053  6/16/2020Refer 2993
Cash Payment $9,546.50WC Patrol Services - June 2020E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice June 2020 5/26/2020

$9,546.50TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

HARDWARE HANK Ck# 035038  6/16/2020Refer 2994
Cash Payment $5.82Cardinal Park Irrigation: Bushing, ClampE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1634700 5/5/2020
Cash Payment $12.58City Hall Rear Door: Handicap Door OpenerE 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1637121 5/13/2020
Cash Payment $51.00Grass Seed, Male PVC AdapterE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 1637367 5/14/2020
Cash Payment $25.51Settlers Park Shelter: Mens Bathroom RepairE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1639779 5/21/2020
Cash Payment $14.38Big Mower: BeltE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 0639967 5/22/2020

$109.29TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY JOURNAL PRES Ck# 035054  6/16/2020Refer 2995
Cash Payment $39.00PHN: K. Luedemann Conditional Use PermitE 818-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing
Invoice 5/31/2020

$39.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS. TRUS Ck# 035041  6/16/2020Refer 2996
Cash Payment $6,753.06Work Comp Firefighters: 05/31/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENER

Invoice 6/4/2020
Cash Payment $4,502.04Work Comp Firefighters: 01/01/2021 - 

05/30/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 6/4/2020

8



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 4

Current Period: June 2020

Cash Payment $802.93Work Comp Clerical / Office: 05/31/2020 - 
12/31/2020

E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENER

Invoice 6/4/2020
Cash Payment $535.29Work Comp Clerical / Office: 01/01/2021 - 

05/30/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 6/4/2020
Cash Payment $8,833.28Work Comp Public Works: 05/31/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENER

Invoice 6/4/2020
Cash Payment $5,888.85Work Comp Public Works: 01/01/2021 - 

05/30/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 6/4/2020
Cash Payment $52.53Work Comp Boards / Elected Officials: 

05/31/2020 - 12/31/2020
E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENER

Invoice 6/4/2020
Cash Payment $35.02Work Comp Boards / Elected Officials: 

01/01/2021 - 05/30/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 6/4/2020
$27,403.00TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

COLLABORATIVE PLANNING LLC Ck# 002970E 6/16/2020Refer 2997
Cash Payment $1,627.50General Planning: May 2020E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 2020-085 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $472.50Fehn Companies - IUP Expansion: May 2020

Project 208263
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-086 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $157.50Fehn Companies - Lot Split: May 2020

Project 208272
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-087 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $52.50Joe Slavec - CUP: May 2020

Project 208276
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-088 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $52.50Brandon & Tierney Berning - CUP: May 2020

Project 208277
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-089 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $157.50Ben & Kristal Sneen / Riverside Estates - 

Variance: May 2020
Project 208274

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-090 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $52.50Bill's Superette: May 2020

Project 208278
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-091 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $393.75K. Luedemann - CUP: May 2020

Project 208273
E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-092 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $236.25JBW Holdings / River Town Villas - Final Plat: 

May 2020
Project 208258

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-093 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $52.50JP Brooks / Rivers Edge - Concept Plan: May 

2020
Project 208271

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-094 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $52.50Ben & Kristal Sneen / Riverside Estates - 

Multiple Escrows: May 2020
Project 208268

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-095 6/3/2020
Cash Payment $26.25Mavco Inc / Mercantile Pass - Concept Plan: 

May 2020
Project 208269

E 818-41910-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2020-096 6/3/2020
$3,333.75TotalTransaction Date 6/8/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

GRAMBART, ELROY Ck# 035036  6/16/2020Refer 2975
Cash Payment $2,000.00Erosion Control Escrow Release - 10467 BeeBe 

Lake Road
E 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 6/11/2020

9



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 5

Current Period: June 2020

Cash Payment $2,000.00Landscaping Escrow Release - 10467 BeeBe 
Lake Road

E 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 6/11/2020
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure Escrow Release - 10467 BeeBe 

Lake Road
E 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice 6/11/2020
$5,000.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

MN PEIP Ck# 035045  6/16/2020Refer 2976
Cash Payment $3,247.00Medical & Dental Premiums - July 2020G 100-21706 Medical/Dental Ins
Invoice 978062 6/10/2020
Cash Payment -$1,079.46Life Insurace - July 2020G 100-21707 Life Ins
Invoice 978062 6/10/2020

$2,167.54TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

BURSCHVILLE CONSTRUCTION Ck# 035024  6/16/2020Refer 2977
Cash Payment $3,375.00Repair of Water Service Leak @ 527 Overlook 

Circle
E 601-49410-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 4631 5/15/2020
Cash Payment $607.50Grading & Rolling of Gravel Roads on 5/7/2020E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 4634 5/15/2020

$3,982.50TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

SCHULTES GREENHOUSE Ck# 035049  6/16/2020Refer 2978
Cash Payment $305.53Flowers for City Hall PotsE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials
Invoice 004421 6/2/2020

$305.53TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

ZEP SALES & SERVICE Ck# 035055  6/16/2020Refer 2979
Cash Payment $75.94Hand Sanitizer Gel 500mlE 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GEN
Invoice 900176424 5/13/2020

$75.94TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

ADVANTAGE SIGNS & GRAPHICS Ck# 035022  6/16/2020Refer 2980
Cash Payment $371.88Dead End 30" x 30" Signs - Qty 6E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials
Invoice 00042400 5/29/2020

$371.88TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

DMJ ASPHALT INC Ck# 035033  6/16/2020Refer 2981
Cash Payment $10,620.00Asphalt Repairs to 1242 Irvine Drive, 11240 

12th Street, 12th Street & Rolling Oaks Drive 
and 14th Street and Ivine Drive

E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials

Invoice 15246 5/27/2020
$10,620.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA Ck# 035053  6/16/2020Refer 2982
Cash Payment $14,950.00Assessment Contract - 2020E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 105-20 6/1/2020

$14,950.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

SITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY Ck# 035050  6/16/2020Refer 2983
Cash Payment $353.00T-Zone Post Emergent Liquid HerbicideE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials
Invoice 100143423-001 6/1/2020
Cash Payment $22.11Krylon Paint Marking Wand 34"E 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 100484201-001 6/10/2020

$375.11TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTURY LINK Ck# 035027  6/16/2020Refer 2984

10



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 6

Current Period: June 2020

Cash Payment $42.57Fire Station Landline - 05/28/2020 - 06/27/2020E 100-42280-321 Telephone
Invoice 5/28/2020

$42.57TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS Ck# 035034  6/16/2020Refer 2985
Cash Payment $9.50Cook & Cold Rental Cooler - June 2020E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1206008 6/1/2020

$9.50TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

MN CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMENT Ck# 035044  6/16/2020Refer 2986
Cash Payment $66.72B. Hagen: MCMA Dues 05/01/2020 - 12/31/2020E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions
Invoice
Cash Payment $33.28B. Hagen: MCMA Dues 01/01/2021 - 04/30/2021G 100-15500 Prepaid Items
Invoice

$100.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

CROW RIVER FARM EQUIPMENT Ck# 035031  6/16/2020Refer 2987
Cash Payment $207.06Wood Chip CoverE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 197417 6/1/2020

$207.06TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

DIAZ, GEORGE Ck# 035032  6/16/2020Refer 2988
Cash Payment $215.92Brute Force Red Line Fitness Program, 45 lb. & 

Strongman Sandbag Combo Kit
E 107-42220-580 Other Equipment

Invoice 6/9/2020
$215.92TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

Concept2, Inc. Ck# 035029  6/16/2020Refer 2989
Cash Payment $895.00Indoor Rower Black Model D with PM5 MonitorE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 1023667 6/8/2020

$895.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

FringeSport, Inc. Ck# 035035  6/16/2020Refer 2990
Cash Payment $2,831.33Kip Cage, 230 lb. Bumper Plate Set, Dumbbells, 

Wonder Bar Bell, Olympic Barbell, Kettlebell 
Storage Rack, Medicine Balls, Kettlebells, Gym 
Bench, Sport Clock Timer

E 107-42220-580 Other Equipment

Invoice 158228 3/5/2020
$2,831.33TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS. TRUS Ck# 035041  6/16/2020Refer 2991
Cash Payment $4,936.65General Liability Ins. - General Government: 

06/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $3,526.18General Liability Ins. - General Government: 

01/01/2021 - 05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $1,996.17General Liability Ins. - Fire Department: 

06/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $1,425.83General Liability Ins. - Fire Department: 

01/01/2021 - 05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $2,681.38General Liability Ins. - Public Works: 

06/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020

11



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 7

Current Period: June 2020

Cash Payment $1,915.27General Liability Ins. - Public Works: 
01/01/2021 - 05/31/2021

G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $1,066.92General Liability Ins. - Sewer: 06/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 602-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $762.08General Liability Ins. - Sewer: 01/01/2021 - 

05/31/2021
G 602-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $175.60General Liability Ins. - Water: 06/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 601-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $125.43General Liability Ins. - Water: 01/01/2021 - 

05/31/2021
G 601-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $5,377.41General Liability Ins. - Parks: 06/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $3,841.01General Liability Ins. - Parks: 01/01/2021 - 

05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $541.85General Liability Ins. - City Wide: 06/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $387.04General Liability Ins. - City Wide: 01/01/2021 - 

05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $26.93General Liability Ins. - EDA: 06/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $19.24General Liability Ins. - EDA: 01/01/2021 - 

05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $1,061.82Excess Liability Ins. - General Government: 

06/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $758.44Excess Liability Ins. - General Government: 

01/01/2021 - 05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $131.65Excess Liability Ins. - Fire Department: 

06/01/2020 - 12/31/2020
E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $94.04Excess Liability Ins. - Fire Department: 

01/01/2021 - 05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $25.70Excess Liability Ins. - EDA: 06/01/2020 - 

12/31/2020
E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins

Invoice 5/28/2020
Cash Payment $18.36Excess Liability Ins. - EDA: 01/01/2021 - 

05/31/2021
G 100-15500 Prepaid Items

Invoice 5/28/2020
$30,895.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

KENNEY, JEROME & LYNETTE Ck# 035040  6/16/2020Refer 2992
Cash Payment $50.00Hall Rental Deposit Returned - 09/12/2020 

Event Cancelled Due to COVID-19
R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue

Invoice

12



Payments

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:16 AM
Page 8

Current Period: June 2020

$50.00TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

WOLKERSTORFER, ALANNA Ck# 035052  6/16/2020Refer 2993
Cash Payment $100.00Shelter Damage Deposit Returned - 06/14/2020 

Event Cancelled Due to COVID-19
E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme

Invoice
Cash Payment $125.00Shelter Rental Fee Returned - 06/14/2020 Event 

Cancelled Due to COVID-19
R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees

Invoice
Cash Payment $9.21Shelter Sales Tax Returned - 06/14/2020 Event 

Cancelled Due to COVID-19
G 100-20400 Sales Tax Payable

Invoice
$234.21TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

OMANN BROTHERS INC Ck# 035048  6/16/2020Refer 2994
Cash Payment $1,469.34Asphalt and Oil for 15th Street PatchingE 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 14398 5/27/2020

$1,469.34TotalTransaction Date 6/11/2020 Cash 10100Due 0

Pre-Written Checks $245,102.90
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $0.00

Total $245,102.90

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $1,745.25
817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $1,000.00
815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $2,000.00
811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $2,000.00
602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $113,450.75
601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $11,427.03
107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $3,942.25
100 GENERAL FUND $109,537.62

$245,102.90

13



*Check Summary Register©

CITY OF HANOVER 06/12/20 8:08 AM
Page 1

Batch: 06-16-20 PAY

Name Check Date Check Amt

10100   Cash

2965e XCEL ENERGY 6/16/2020 $2,047.94 Xcel Owned Street Lighting 05/03/2020 - 06/02
2966e MCFOA 6/16/2020 $45.00 J. Heinz - MCFOA Dues: 07/01/2020 - 12/31/2
2967e MN PUBLIC FACILITIES AUTHOR 6/16/2020 $96,087.75 MN PFA Bond - Principal
2968e CITY OF ST. MICHAEL 6/16/2020 $10,272.00 SAC Fee - 9919 Jordan Avenue
2969e The Hartford 6/16/2020 $194.52 STD & LTD - June 2020
2970e Collaborative Planning LLC 6/16/2020 $3,333.75 General Planning: May 2020
35022 ADVANTAGE SIGNS & GRAPHIC 6/16/2020 $371.88 Dead End 30" x 30" Signs - Qty 6
35023 BERGANKDV 6/16/2020 $4,000.00 Final Billing on the Audit of the Financial State
35024 BURSCHVILLE CONSTRUCTION 6/16/2020 $3,982.50 Repair of Water Service Leak @ 527 Overlook 
35025 CARSON, CLELLAND & SCHRED 6/16/2020 $68.04 Legal Support / Work - April & May 2020
35026 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 6/16/2020 $260.83 City Hall Gas Utilities: 04-27-2020 - 05-27-2020
35027 CENTURY LINK 6/16/2020 $42.57 Fire Station Landline - 05/28/2020 - 06/27/2020
35028 COMCAST 6/16/2020 $152.99 CH: Digital voice & Internet - June 2020
35029 Concept2, Inc. 6/16/2020 $895.00 Indoor Rower Black Model D with PM5 Monitor
35030 COTTENS, INC. 6/16/2020 $182.48 Utility 12: Power Switch Indicator Light
35031 CROW RIVER FARM EQUIPMEN 6/16/2020 $207.06 Wood Chip Cover
35032 DIAZ, GEORGE 6/16/2020 $215.92 Brute Force Red Line Fitness Program, 45 lb. 
35033 DMJ ASPHALT INC 6/16/2020 $10,620.00 Asphalt Repairs to 1242 Irvine Drive, 11240 12t
35034 FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS 6/16/2020 $9.50 Cook & Cold Rental Cooler - June 2020
35035 FringeSport, Inc. 6/16/2020 $2,831.33 Kip Cage, 230 lb. Bumper Plate Set, Dumbbell
35036 GRAMBART, ELROY 6/16/2020 $5,000.00 Erosion Control Escrow Release - 10467 BeeB
35037 HANOVER WINE & SPIRITS LLC 6/16/2020 $625.00 Hall Damage Deposit Returned - 05/08/2020 E
35038 HARDWARE HANK 6/16/2020 $109.29 Cardinal Park Irrigation: Bushing, Clamp
35039 JOINT POWERS WATER BOARD 6/16/2020 $4,002.00 WAC Fee - 9919 Jordan Avenue
35040 KENNEY, JEROME & LYNETTE 6/16/2020 $50.00 Hall Rental Deposit Returned - 09/12/2020 Eve
35041 LEAGUE OF MN CITIES INS. TRU 6/16/2020 $58,298.00 General Liability Ins. - Water: 06/01/2020 - 12/
35042 MASUDA, DELORES 6/16/2020 $200.00 Hall Damage Deposit Returned - 6/28/2020 Ev
35043 METRO WEST INSPECTION SER 6/16/2020 $2,573.38 Pmt 8-18 @ 680 Kadler Circle
35044 MN CITY/COUNTY MANAGEMEN 6/16/2020 $100.00 B. Hagen: MCMA Dues 05/01/2020 - 12/31/202
35045 MN PEIP 6/16/2020 $2,167.54 Medical & Dental Premiums - July 2020
35046 MOOTZ, TODD & DEANN 6/16/2020 $50.00 Hall Rental Fee Returned - 6/12 & 6/13/2020 E
35047 NW HOMESCHOOL ATHLETIC C 6/16/2020 $100.00 Hall Rental Deposit Returned - 5/31/2020 Even
35048 OMANN BROTHERS INC 6/16/2020 $1,469.34 Asphalt and Oil for 15th Street Patching
35049 SCHULTES GREENHOUSE 6/16/2020 $305.53 Flowers for City Hall Pots
35050 SITE ONE LANDSCAPE SUPPLY 6/16/2020 $375.11 T-Zone Post Emergent Liquid Herbicide
35051 VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERIC 6/16/2020 $9,011.00 Sewer Services - July 2020
35052 WOLKERSTORFER, ALANNA 6/16/2020 $234.21 Shelter Damage Deposit Returned - 06/14/202
35053 WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TRE 6/16/2020 $24,496.50 WC Patrol Services - June 2020
35054 WRIGHT COUNTY JOURNAL PR 6/16/2020 $39.00 PHN: K. Luedemann Conditional Use Permit
35055 ZEP SALES & SERVICE 6/16/2020 $75.94 Hand Sanitizer Gel 500ml

Total Checks $245,102.90

FILTER: (([Act Year]='2020' and [period] in (6))) and (Source in ('06-16-20 PAY'))

14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



06/12/20 9:17 AM

Cash Balances

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

June 2020

Fund
Begin

Month
GL Debits

Month
GL Credits

Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $332,622.56 $1,079.46 $147,390.84 $186,311.18

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $27,272.50 $0.00 $3,942.25 $23,330.25

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $138,630.33 $0.00 $0.00 $138,630.33

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $81,368.36 $0.00 $0.00 $81,368.36

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $48,116.97 $0.00 $0.00 $48,116.97

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $15,538.75 $0.00 $0.00 $15,538.75

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $475,679.86 $0.00 $0.00 $475,679.86

315 2016A GO CIP BOND $17,530.09 $0.00 $0.00 $17,530.09

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $730,611.65 $0.00 $0.00 $730,611.65

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $94,492.60 $0.00 $0.00 $94,492.60

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $362,602.64 $0.00 $0.00 $362,602.64

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

405 PARK DEDICATION FEE $119,397.14 $0.00 $0.00 $119,397.14

406 GAMBLING PROCEEDS $13,837.94 $0.00 $0.00 $13,837.94

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $8,822.44 $0.00 $0.00 $8,822.44

409 MAHLER PIT - 15TH ST IMP FUND $107,159.65 $0.00 $0.00 $107,159.65

411 FACILITIES CAPITAL PROJ FUND $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $12,835.51 $0.00 $0.00 $12,835.51

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $383,796.57 $0.00 $978.00 $382,818.57

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $994,568.97 $0.00 $11,427.03 $983,141.94

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $489,056.37 $0.00 $113,450.75 $375,605.62

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $192,855.04 $0.00 $720.76 $192,134.28

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $220,324.96 $0.00 $0.00 $220,324.96

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $2,171,942.28 $0.00 $0.00 $2,171,942.28

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $693,734.18 $0.00 $82.48 $693,651.70

701 RIVER ROAD CEMETERY $37,081.74 $0.00 $0.00 $37,081.74

702 CSAH 19 CEMETERY $4,450.00 $0.00 $0.00 $4,450.00

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $52,123.53 $0.00 $4,000.00 $48,123.53

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $52,000.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $48,000.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $33,000.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $31,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $26,404.46 $0.00 $4,540.50 $21,863.96

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,794.94 $0.00 $0.00 $3,794.94

823 CROW RVR HTS WEST 3RD / BACKES $15,003.88 $0.00 $564.25 $14,439.63

825 CROW RVR HTS FUT WEST PLAT/PUD $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

826 CROW RVR HTS 4TH ADD FINL PLAT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

827 HANOVER COVE PRELIMINARY PLAT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

828 CROW RVR HTS 4TH DEVEL AGRMT $55,781.40 $0.00 $504.00 $55,277.40

900 INTEREST $48,443.19 $0.00 $0.00 $48,443.19

$8,060,880.50 $1,079.46 $293,600.86 $7,768,359.10

33



06/12/20 9:22 AM

Revenue Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

June
2020 Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $0.00 $1,010,873.00 $1,010,873.00 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $0.00 $104,404.00 $104,404.00 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $3,598.19 $15,000.00 $11,401.81 23.99%

$0.00 $3,598.19 $1,130,277.00 $1,126,678.81 0.32%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue -$675.00 $550.00 $11,000.00 $10,450.00 5.00%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $0.00 $650.00 $600.00 -$50.00 108.33%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $0.00 $2,550.00 $3,000.00 $450.00 85.00%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34206 Other Public Safety Charges $0.00 $610.00 $0.00 -$610.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $0.00 $107,573.00 $107,573.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees -$125.00 -$125.00 $2,500.00 $2,625.00 -5.00%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

-$800.00 $4,235.00 $130,723.00 $126,488.00 3.24%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.00 $2,351.80 $100.00 -$2,251.80 2351.80%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $2,641.55 $0.00 -$2,641.55 0.00%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $1,757.01 $0.00 -$1,757.01 0.00%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $1,217.54 $400.00 -$817.54 304.39%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $0.00 $400.00 $9,000.00 $8,600.00 4.44%

MISC R 100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39101 Sales of General Fixed Asset $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $8,367.90 $9,500.00 $1,132.10 88.08%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $0.00 $6,870.00 $6,870.00 $0.00 100.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $575.00 $1,000.00 $425.00 57.50%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $0.00 $54,428.45 $100,000.00 $45,571.55 54.43%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 $0.00 100.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $0.00 $50.00 $50.00 0.00%

$0.00 $63,373.45 $110,420.00 $47,046.55 57.39%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $4,000.00 $0.00 -$4,000.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $0.00 $124,773.00 $124,773.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $0.00 $339.00 $339.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $0.00 $39,000.00 $39,000.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $4,000.00 $170,612.00 $166,612.00 2.34%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $1,721.16 $3,000.00 $1,278.84 57.37%

$0.00 $1,721.16 $3,000.00 $1,278.84 57.37%Source Alt Code FINES

-$800.00 $85,295.70 $1,554,532.00 $1,469,236.30 5.49%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

34



Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

June
2020 Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
06/12/20 9:22 AM

Revenue Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

-$800.00 $85,295.70 $1,554,532.00 $1,469,236.30 5.49%

35



06/12/20 9:22 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2020
Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $120.75 $13,000.00 $12,879.25 0.93%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $806.00 $806.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $189.00 $189.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $550.00 $2,000.00 $1,450.00 27.50%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $4,237.68 $7,500.00 $3,262.32 56.50%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $271.04 $2,000.00 $1,728.96 13.55%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $428.72 $20,000.00 $19,571.28 2.14%

$0.00 $5,608.19 $45,495.00 $39,886.81 12.33%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $5,700.00 $5,700.00 0.00%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $3,153.85 $35,334.79 $78,668.00 $43,333.21 44.92%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $236.54 $2,824.33 $5,900.00 $3,075.67 47.87%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $194.44 $2,321.58 $4,877.00 $2,555.42 47.60%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $45.47 $542.92 $1,141.00 $598.08 47.58%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $26.51 $318.12 $674.00 $355.88 47.20%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $323.07 $3,876.84 $8,400.00 $4,523.16 46.15%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $725.00 $1,500.00 $775.00 48.33%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $66.72 $165.00 $200.00 $35.00 82.50%

$4,046.60 $46,108.58 $101,360.00 $55,251.42 45.49%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-101 Full-Time Employees R $0.00 $1,424.50 $13,500.00 $12,075.50 10.55%

ELECTION E 100-41410-122 FICA $0.00 $88.31 $837.00 $748.69 10.55%

ELECTION E 100-41410-123 Medicare $0.00 $20.66 $196.00 $175.34 10.54%

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $3,303.35 $5,000.00 $1,696.65 66.07%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Servi $13.80 $13.80 $5,000.00 $4,986.20 0.28%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $1,201.60 $1,200.00 -$1.60 100.13%

ELECTION E 100-41410-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $2,201.88 $0.00 -$2,201.88 0.00%

$13.80 $8,254.10 $25,933.00 $17,678.90 31.83%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $1,923.16 $21,562.91 $49,926.00 $28,363.09 43.19%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $144.24 $1,727.78 $3,744.00 $2,016.22 46.15%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $118.14 $1,415.16 $3,095.00 $1,679.84 45.72%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $27.63 $330.99 $724.00 $393.01 45.72%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $18.51 $222.12 $456.00 $233.88 48.71%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $323.07 $3,876.84 $8,400.00 $4,523.16 46.15%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions $22.50 $45.00 $100.00 $55.00 45.00%

$2,577.25 $29,180.80 $66,945.00 $37,764.20 43.59%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $227.78 $500.00 $272.22 45.56%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $13.80 $86.26 $2,000.00 $1,913.74 4.31%
36



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2020
Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
06/12/20 9:22 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$13.80 $314.04 $2,800.00 $2,485.96 11.22%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $2,217.08 $24,826.96 $57,920.00 $33,093.04 42.86%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $166.28 $1,990.27 $4,344.00 $2,353.73 45.82%

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $137.46 $1,645.31 $3,591.00 $1,945.69 45.82%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $32.15 $384.81 $840.00 $455.19 45.81%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $21.13 $253.56 $527.00 $273.44 48.11%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $322.86 $3,874.32 $8,400.00 $4,525.68 46.12%

ACCTING E 100-41530-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $50.00 $250.00 $200.00 20.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$2,896.96 $33,025.23 $76,872.00 $43,846.77 42.96%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Serv $4,000.00 $22,150.00 $22,000.00 -$150.00 100.68%

$4,000.00 $22,150.00 $22,000.00 -$150.00 100.68%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Servi $14,950.00 $15,115.85 $23,000.00 $7,884.15 65.72%

$14,950.00 $15,115.85 $23,000.00 $7,884.15 65.72%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $1,114.58 $3,500.00 $2,385.42 31.85%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 $12.00 $200.00 $188.00 6.00%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $1,785.00 $3,305.50 $8,000.00 $4,694.50 41.32%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $176.05 $1,987.79 $4,500.00 $2,512.21 44.17%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $6.95 -$15.01 $2,500.00 $2,515.01 -0.60%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

$1,968.00 $6,404.86 $21,700.00 $15,295.14 29.52%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Servi $128.86 $3,698.77 $6,000.00 $2,301.23 61.65%

$128.86 $3,698.77 $6,000.00 $2,301.23 61.65%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $1,373.94 $3,463.27 $20,000.00 $16,536.73 17.32%

$1,373.94 $3,463.27 $20,000.00 $16,536.73 17.32%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Servi $1,627.50 $6,851.50 $20,000.00 $13,148.50 34.26%

$1,627.50 $6,851.50 $20,000.00 $13,148.50 34.26%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $75.94 $75.94 $3,000.00 $2,924.06 2.53%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $276.20 $2,099.40 $6,000.00 $3,900.60 34.99%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $775.00 $550.00 -$225.00 140.91%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $2,045.76 $7,500.00 $5,454.24 27.28%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $541.37 $2,279.40 $6,400.00 $4,120.60 35.62%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $272.25 $400.00 $127.75 68.06%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $465.68 $2,406.51 $9,000.00 $6,593.49 26.74%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $73.33 $1,762.38 $5,000.00 $3,237.62 35.25%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $267.98 $1,640.22 $3,000.00 $1,359.78 54.67%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $648.11 $4,000.00 $3,351.89 16.20%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

37



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2020
Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3
06/12/20 9:22 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$1,700.50 $14,004.97 $46,850.00 $32,845.03 29.89%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $1,543.50 $6,389.00 $15,000.00 $8,611.00 42.59%

$1,543.50 $6,389.00 $15,000.00 $8,611.00 42.59%Dept 41950 Engineer

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $9,688.74 $14,776.10 $13,000.00 -$1,776.10 113.66%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $14,651.74 $24,652.62 $25,000.00 $347.38 98.61%

$24,340.48 $39,428.72 $38,000.00 -$1,428.72 103.76%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $0.00 $494.80 $300.00 -$194.80 164.93%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $42.50 $200.00 $157.50 21.25%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $30.88 $2,000.00 $1,969.12 1.54%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $250.00 $250.00 0.00%

$0.00 $568.18 $2,750.00 $2,181.82 20.66%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42000 Public Safety (GENERAL)

PUBSAFTY E 100-42000-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $20.00 $0.00 -$20.00 0.00%

$0.00 $20.00 $0.00 -$20.00 0.00%Dept 42000 Public Safety (GENERAL)

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $21,092.00 $84,368.00 $63,276.00 25.00%

$0.00 $21,092.00 $84,368.00 $63,276.00 25.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Servi $9,546.50 $57,279.00 $114,558.00 $57,279.00 50.00%

$9,546.50 $57,279.00 $114,558.00 $57,279.00 50.00%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 -$1,814.39 $70,600.00 $72,414.39 -2.57%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $1,470.46 $4,377.00 $2,906.54 33.60%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $343.92 $1,024.00 $680.08 33.59%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $6,753.06 $10,219.30 $9,000.00 -$1,219.30 113.55%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $78.89 $350.00 $271.11 22.54%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $576.50 $4,000.00 $3,423.50 14.41%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $1,627.00 $1,000.00 -$627.00 162.70%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $2,127.82 $3,639.87 $5,000.00 $1,360.13 72.80%

$8,880.88 $16,141.55 $95,651.00 $79,509.45 16.88%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $1,729.00 $2,777.57 $11,500.00 $8,722.43 24.15%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $0.00 $241.44 $1,500.00 $1,258.56 16.10%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $28.97 $1,000.00 $971.03 2.90%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $0.00 $640.37 $28,500.00 $27,859.63 2.25%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $43.94 $5,000.00 $4,956.06 0.88%

$1,729.00 $3,732.29 $47,500.00 $43,767.71 7.86%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $588.06 $7,500.00 $6,911.94 7.84%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-310 Other Professional Servi $842.57 $1,716.14 $3,380.00 $1,663.86 50.77%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

$842.57 $2,304.20 $12,380.00 $10,075.80 18.61%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $407.87 $3,000.00 $2,592.13 13.60%38



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2020
Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4
06/12/20 9:22 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $182.48 $1,564.54 $9,000.00 $7,435.46 17.38%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $37.00 $7,800.00 $7,763.00 0.47%

$182.48 $2,009.41 $20,800.00 $18,790.59 9.66%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $800.00 $800.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $284.49 $998.71 $7,500.00 $6,501.29 13.32%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $42.57 $454.78 $1,000.00 $545.22 45.48%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $248.69 $1,203.56 $4,500.00 $3,296.44 26.75%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $74.91 $1,285.41 $3,500.00 $2,214.59 36.73%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-520 Buildings and Structure $5,194.95 $5,269.95 $0.00 -$5,269.95 0.00%

$5,845.61 $9,212.41 $17,300.00 $8,087.59 53.25%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributio $0.00 $4,000.00 $39,000.00 $35,000.00 10.26%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contr $0.00 $0.00 $12,096.00 $12,096.00 0.00%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Serv $0.00 $0.00 $6,250.00 $6,250.00 0.00%

$0.00 $4,000.00 $57,346.00 $53,346.00 6.98%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi $2,573.38 $12,683.05 $40,000.00 $27,316.95 31.71%

$2,573.38 $12,683.05 $40,000.00 $27,316.95 31.71%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%

$0.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $5,772.32 $62,051.24 $146,116.00 $84,064.76 42.47%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $156.00 $1,119.22 $28,360.00 $27,240.78 3.95%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $432.92 $4,984.51 $12,834.00 $7,849.49 38.84%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $358.90 $4,146.22 $11,775.00 $7,628.78 35.21%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $83.93 $969.69 $2,892.00 $1,922.31 33.53%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $55.12 $632.75 $1,548.00 $915.25 40.88%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $1,064.67 $12,363.12 $32,400.00 $20,036.88 38.16%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $1,999.00 $3,500.00 $1,501.00 57.11%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-212 Motor Fuels $619.41 $2,855.51 $12,000.00 $9,144.49 23.80%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies $380.36 $1,817.78 $7,500.00 $5,682.22 24.24%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $139.99 $2,202.90 $12,000.00 $9,797.10 18.36%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials $371.88 $437.78 $1,500.00 $1,062.22 29.19%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor $129.47 $551.81 $10,000.00 $9,448.19 5.52%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-310 Other Professional Servi $46.90 $3,865.00 $7,500.00 $3,635.00 51.53%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $607.45 $2,659.17 $4,200.00 $1,540.83 63.31%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-325 Taxes $0.00 $134.75 $200.00 $65.25 67.38%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-381 Electric Utilities $348.85 $1,686.29 $4,000.00 $2,313.71 42.16%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-383 Gas Utilities $112.59 $2,566.63 $7,000.00 $4,433.37 36.67%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-520 Buildings and Structure $0.00 $555.14 $0.00 -$555.14 0.00%

39



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2020
Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5
06/12/20 9:22 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$10,680.76 $107,598.51 $310,325.00 $202,726.49 34.67%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $12,089.34 $16,045.04 $50,000.00 $33,954.96 32.09%

$12,089.34 $16,045.04 $50,000.00 $33,954.96 32.09%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $607.50 $607.50 $15,000.00 $14,392.50 4.05%

$607.50 $607.50 $15,000.00 $14,392.50 4.05%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $6,385.20 $20,000.00 $13,614.80 31.93%

$0.00 $6,385.20 $20,000.00 $13,614.80 31.93%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $2,154.04 $10,743.81 $25,000.00 $14,256.19 42.98%

$2,154.04 $10,743.81 $25,000.00 $14,256.19 42.98%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 0.00%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $3,565.25 $17,790.50 $44,000.00 $26,209.50 40.43%

$3,565.25 $17,790.50 $44,000.00 $26,209.50 40.43%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $2,274.11 $9,100.00 $6,825.89 24.99%

$0.00 $2,274.11 $9,100.00 $6,825.89 24.99%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $0.00 $187.85 $2,000.00 $1,812.15 9.39%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $186.11 $3,988.65 $6,000.00 $2,011.35 66.48%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $658.53 $658.53 $8,000.00 $7,341.47 8.23%

PARKS E 100-45200-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $373.88 $895.27 $2,200.00 $1,304.73 40.69%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $181.00 $362.00 $8,000.00 $7,638.00 4.53%

$1,399.52 $6,092.30 $26,200.00 $20,107.70 23.25%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $4,655.41 $11,600.00 $6,944.59 40.13%

$0.00 $4,655.41 $11,600.00 $6,944.59 40.13%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $500.00 $2,100.00 $9,000.00 $6,900.00 23.33%

$500.00 $2,100.00 $9,000.00 $6,900.00 23.33%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Servi $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$121,778.02 $543,582.35 $1,554,533.00 $1,010,950.65 34.97%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

40



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2020
Amt

2020
YTD Amt

2020 YTD
Budget

2020 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6
06/12/20 9:22 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

CITY OF HANOVER

$121,778.02 $543,582.35 $1,554,533.00 $1,010,950.65 34.97%

41



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 

RESOLUTION NO 06-16-20-59 
 

APPROVING PURCHASE OF BARRIER SHIELDS 
 
WHEREAS, staff recommends purchasing protective shields to create a physical barrier between the 
City’s Election Judges and voters; and 

WHEREAS, Hanover utilizes ten judge stations and each barrier costs $117. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, 
hereby approves the purchase of 10 protective shields to be utilized during the elections in the amount of 
$1,170. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council this 16th day of June, 2020. 

APPROVED BY: 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

42



 
EXTRACT OF MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE 

CITY COUNCIL OF THE  
CITY OF HANOVER, MINNESOTA 

 
 

Held: June 16, 2020 
 
 Pursuant to due call and notice thereof, a regular meeting of the City Council of the City 
of Hanover, Hennepin and Wright Counties, Minnesota, was duly called to order on June 16, 2020, 
at 7:00 P.M. 
 

The following members were present:  
 
 
and the following members were absent:  
 
 
 Member __________ introduced the following resolution and moved its adoption: 
 

 RESOLUTION 06-16-20-60 CALLING FOR THE REDEMPTION OF  
THE OUTSTANDING  

GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN REFUNDING BONDS, 
SERIES 2008A 

 
 WHEREAS: 
 
 A.  The City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota issued $660,000 General 
Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Refunding Bonds, Series 2008A, dated June 1, 2008; and 
  
 B.  All of said bonds maturing or subject to mandatory redemption on February 1, 2017 
through 2022, inclusive, are subject to redemption, in whole or in part, and prepayment at the 
option of the City on February 1, 2016, and on any date thereafter at par plus accrued interest, all 
as provided in the resolution of the City authorizing the issuance of said bonds; and 
 
 C.  The City deems it desirable and in the best interest of the City to call $75,000 of the 
outstanding bonds maturing or subject to mandatory redemption in the years 2021 through 2022, 
inclusive, for redemption on July 22, 2020, in accordance with said resolution authorizing the 
issuance of said bonds, and 
 
  NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of  
Hanover, Minnesota as follows: 
 
 1.  $75,000 of the General Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Refunding Bonds, Series 
2008A, dated June 1, 2008, of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, maturing or subject to mandatory 
redemption in the years 2021 through 2022, inclusive, shall be redeemed and prepaid on July 22, 

43



2020, at 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest for each such bond called. 
 
 
 2.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to give mailed notice of call 
to the bank where said bonds are payable and said bank shall provide such notice to the holders of 
the bonds as may be required by law. Said notice shall be in substantially the attached form. 
 
 3.  The City Administrator is hereby authorized and directed to deposit with the bank where 
said bonds are payable prior to said call date sufficient funds to pay all principal and interest due 
on the bonds as of the call date. 
 
 The motion for the adoption of the foregoing resolution was duly seconded by member 
__________ and upon a vote taken thereon, the following voted in favor thereof:  
 
 
and the following voted against the same:   
 
 
 Whereupon said resolution was declared duly passed and adopted. 
 
 
 
  

44



 
STATE OF MINNESOTA 
COUNTIES OF HENNEPIN AND WRIGHT 
CITY OF HANOVER 
 
 
 
 I, the undersigned, being the duly qualified and acting City Administrator of the City of 
Hanover, Hennepin and Wright Counties, Minnesota, DO HEREBY CERTIFY, that I have 
carefully compared the preceding extract of minutes of a meeting of the City Council of said City 
held on the date therein indicated with the original minutes thereof on file in my office and that 
the same is a full, true and correct transcript thereof insofar as said minutes relate to the topic 
described in the title of the resolution set forth in the extract.  
 
 WITNESS my hand officially and the official seal of the City on June 16, 2020. 
 
 
 

____________________________________ 
City Administrator 

 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

45



 
NOTICE OF CALL FOR REDEMPTION 

 
GENERAL OBLIGATION CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2008A 

 
DATED:  JUNE 1, 2008 

 
CITY OF HANOVER, MINNESOTA 

 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that by order of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, there 
have been called for redemption and prepayment on 
 

JULY 22, 2020 
 
those outstanding bonds of the City designated as General Obligation Capital Improvement Plan Refunding 
Bonds, Series 2008A, dated June 1, 2008, maturing or subject to mandatory redemption in the years 2021 
through 2022, inclusive, totaling $75,000 in principal amount and with the following CUSIP number: 
 

Maturity            Principal Amount           CUSIP 
  2022* $75,000 411026CR6 

 
*This is a Term Bond with a mandatory sinking fund payment in 2021. 

 
The bonds are being called for redemption at a price of 100% of their principal amount plus accrued interest 
to July 22, 2020, on which date all interest on said bonds will cease to accrue.  Holders of the bonds hereby 
called for redemption are requested to present their bonds for payment to Northland Trust Services, Inc., 
150 South 5th Street, Suite 3300, Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402, on or before July 22, 2020. 
 
 Dated:  June 16, 2020 
 

BY ORDER OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
 

/s/ Brian Hagen    
City Administrator 

 
Important Notice:  In compliance with the Economic Growth and Tax Relief reconciliation Act of 2001, 
federal backup withholding tax will be withheld at the applicable backup withholding rate in effect at the 
time of the payment by the redeeming institutions if they are not provided with your social security number 
or federal employer identification number, properly certified.  This requirement is fulfilled by submitting a 
W-9 Form, which may be obtained at a bank or other financial institution. 
 
Additional Information may be obtained from: 
 

NORTHLAND SECURITIES, INC. 
150 South 5th Street, Suite 3300 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402 
Attn: Public Finance 
Phone: 612-851-5900 or 800-851-2920 

46



Account Description Category 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget
06-02-20 
Actual

% of 
Budget 2021 Budget

%  
Change Comments

100-31000 Property Taxes - City TAXES 1,026,640     783,871        842,144        884,973        1,019,515     1,010,873     -                994,223        
100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire Dept TAXES 95,624          112,838        111,200        129,904        101,578        104,404        -                105,771        
100-31800 Franchise Fees TAXES 13,150          14,500          15,759          15,057          14,558          15,000          3,598            15,000          

Total Taxes 1,135,414     911,209        969,103        1,029,934     1,135,651     1,130,277     3,598            0% 1,114,994     -1%
100-32110 Alcoholic Beverages LIC PERM 10,370          10,420          10,420          7070 5,870 6,870 6,870 6,870            5 Liquor License Renewals
100-32180 Other Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 362               482               2,870            1790 1,340 1,000 575 1,000            Utility Permits / Solicitors License
100-32210 Building Permits LIC PERM 139,675        180,198        82,122          87711 105,146 100,000 54,428 100,000        
100-32240 Animal Licenses LIC PERM 260               200               100               0 0 0 0 -                
100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses LIC PERM 500               1,500            1,500            1500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500            
100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses LIC PERM -                1,215            90                 1180 0 1,000 0 -                
100-32280 Other Non-Bus. Lic. & Permits LIC PERM 45                 55                 66                 47 51 50 0 50                 Burn Permits

Total Lic Perm 151,212        194,070        97,168          99,298          113,907        110,420 63,373          57% 109,420        -1%
100-33400 State Grants and Aid INTGOVT 38,757          -                30,772          27,989          4,925            -                4,000            -                
100-33401 Local Gov't Aid (LGA) INTGOVT 105,859        107,496        108,169        117,651        118,250        124,773        -                126,286        Estimated Amount
100-33410 MV Credit INTGOVT 1,866            1,697            1,583            1,319            1,259            1,000            -                1,000            
100-33420 PERA Aid INTGOVT 339               339               339               339               339               339               -                339               
100-33422 State Fire Aid INTGOVT 42,219          39,121          37,428          39,020          41,187          39,000          -                41,000          Estimate
100-33426 State Police Aid INTGOVT 5,566            5,729            5,911            5,984            6,283            5,500            -                5,500            Estimate
100-33610 County Grants / Aid for Roads INTGOVT 13,342          -                -                -                6,155            -                -                -                

Total Intgovt 207,947        154,382        184,202        192,302        178,398        170,612        4,000            2% 174,125        2%
100-34000 Charges for Service SERVICE -                -                -                3,759            5,335            5,000            -                5,000            Clean-up Day
100-34101 City Hall Rentals SERVICE 8,915            8,315            10,698          12,699          14,650          11,000          1,175            12,000          
100-34107 Assessment Searches SERVICE 475               400               750               775               825               600               650               600               
100-34108 Administrative Fees SERVICE 2,447            2,433            3,300            5,756            7,200            3,000            2,550            3,000            
100-34109 Copies/Faxes SERVICE 15                 127               35                 48                 3                   50                 -                50                 
100-34206 Other Public Safety Charges SERVICE 250               415               620               -                610               -                Fire Services Fees / WC SRU
100-34207 Fire Protection SERVICE 107,464        104,785        114,825        141,161        110,756        107,573        -                102,898        Reflects Only Operating Portion
100-34403 Recycling Rev / Reimb SERVICE 6,902            6,372            6,928            6,149            6,042            6,000            -                6,000            Grants from the Counties
100-34780 Park Shelter Rental Fees SERVICE 2,805            2,687            2,220            2,050            1,904            2,500            -                2,500            
100-34940 Cemetery Revenues SERVICE 1,950            3,700            6,050            3,500            13,150          -                -                -                Moved this to Cemtery Cap. Fund

Total Service 130,973        128,819        145,057        176,312        160,485        135,723        4,985            4% 132,048        -3%
100-35100 Court Fines FINES 2,643            2,254            5,167            6,725            3,668            3,000            1,498            3,000            

Total Fines 2,643            2,254            5,167            6,725            3,668            3,000            1,498            50% 3,000            0%
100-36100 Special Assessments MISC 429               2,013            856               -                -                -                -                -                Lawn Mowing Assessed
100-36200 Misc Revenues MISC    13,012          10,454          1,733            2,748            1,511            100               2,352            100               Compost Card Replacements
100-36210 Interest Earnings MISC 36,318          16,286          19,127          11,113          (12,741)         -                2,642            -                
100-36215 Investment Income/Loss MISC (100)              (1,872)           (2,872)           (2,235)           8,038            -                1,757            -                
100-36218 Grants MISC 6,280            -                -                -                -                
100-36230 Contributions & Donations MISC 8,597            6,000            2,425            375               1,360            400               1,218            1,000            No Longer Due to 10% Req.
100-36235 Insurance Dividends MISC 11,500          12,801          3,109            1,429            1,322            -                -                
100-36250 Damage Deposits MISC 6,501            100               -                -                13,250          9,000            400               10,000          
100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements MISC -                4                   181               419               41                 -                -                -                

Preliminary Levy Certification
2021 General Operating Revenue Budget

47



100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment MISC -                1,702            773               -                392               -                -                -                
100-39101 Sales of General Fixed Assets MISC 120,917        -                -                -                -                -                -                
100-39203 Transfers from Other Funds MISC -                19,200          -                -                -                -                -                -                

Total Misc 82,538          187,606        25,334          13,849          13,173          9,500            8,368            88% 11,100          17%

Total Revenue 1,710,727     1,578,339     1,426,030     1,518,420     1,605,283     1,559,532 85,822          6% 1,544,687     -0.95%

48



Account Description Category 2015 Actual 2016 Actual 2017 Actual 2018 Actual 2019 Actual 2020 Budget
06-02-20 
Actual

% of 
Budget 2021 Budget

% 
Change

Dollar 
Change Comments

General Government
100-41110-111 Committe Wages COUNCIL 9,881            10,692          11,967          10,500          12,379          13,000          121               13,000             0
100-41110-122 FICA COUNCIL 632               658               740               623               766               806               -               806                  0
100-41110-123 Medicare COUNCIL 143               154               173               146               179               189               -               189                  0
100-41110-208 Training & Instruction COUNCIL 365               -               575               345               1,300            2,000            550               2,000               0
100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions COUNCIL 6,488            7,856            6,507            7,079            7,208            7,500            4,238            7,500               0
100-41110-331 Travel Expenses COUNCIL 76                 -               138               752               1,489            2,000            271               2,000               0
100-41110-437 Discretionary Miscellaneous COUNCIL 3,128            11,287          6,035            3,880            622               20,000          429               20,000             0

Total Council 20,766          30,646          26,136          23,324          23,943          45,495          5,608            12% 45,495             0% -               
100-41330-111 Committe Wages BRDS & COMM 2,820            3,270            4,380            3,000            4,170            5,000            -               5,000               0
100-41330-208 Training & Instruction BRDS & COMM -               -               -               -               150               500               -               500                  0
100-41330-331 Travel Expenses BRDS & COMM 21                 -               -               -               -               200               -               200                  0

Total Brds & Comm 2,936            3,270            4,380            3,000            4,320            5,700            -               -             5,700               0% -               
100-41400-101 Full-Time Wages CITY ADMIN 75,707          67,580          69,612          72,339          75,266          78,668          32,181          86,115             7,447
100-41400-121 PERA CITY ADMIN 5,870            5,043            5,217            5,400            5,614            5,900            2,588            6,459               559
100-41400-122 FICA CITY ADMIN 4,852            4,169            4,313            4,464            4,634            4,877            2,127            5,339               462
100-41400-123 Medicare CITY ADMIN 1,135            975               1,009            1,044            1,084            1,141            497               1,249               108
100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life CITY ADMIN 414               368               380               520               647               674               292               769                  95 Estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-41400-151 Health Insurance Premium CITY ADMIN 5,237            8,372            8,401            8,319            8,400            8,400            3,554            8,400               0 Monthly Allotment
100-41400-208 Training & Instruction CITY ADMIN 1,310            410               681               1,304            1,283            1,500            725               1,500               0
100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions CITY ADMIN 256               267               254               145               302               200               98                 200                  0

Total City Admin 98,574          87,184          89,866          93,534          97,231          101,360        42,062          41% 110,030           9% 8,671            
100-41410-101 Full-Time Wages ELECTION 13,500          1,425            -                   (13,500)
100-41410-122 FICA ELECTION 837               88                 -                   (837)
100-41410-123 Medicare ELECTION 196               21                 -                   (196)
100-41410-200 Office Supplies ELECTION -               1,631            64                 4,085            (1,566)          5,000            3,303            -                   (5,000) Supplies and Voting Booth Upgrades
100-41410-310 Other Professional Services ELECTION 79                 4,016            -               3,879            -               5,000            14                 -                   (5,000)
100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishing ELECTION -               174               -               64                 -               200               -               -                   (200)
100-41410-400 Repairs & Maintenance Cont ELECTION -               1,014            1,652            1,658            1,602            1,200            1,202            2,000               800 Equipment Maint.
100-41410-437 Other Miscellaneous ELECTION 2,202            -                   0 Costs for PNP Election Only

Total Election 79                 6,835            1,716            9,686            36                 25,933          8,254            32% 2,000               -92% (23,933)        
100-41430-101 Full-Time Wages CLERICAL 53,307          42,267          43,842          46,042          47,854          49,926          19,640          52,176             2,250
100-41430-121 PERA CLERICAL 3,798            3,154            3,285            3,436            3,570            3,744            1,584            3,913               169
100-41430-122 FICA CLERICAL 3,715            2,607            2,716            2,840            2,944            3,095            1,297            3,235               139
100-41430-123 Medicare CLERICAL 869               610               635               664               689               724               303               757                  33
100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life CLERICAL 1,581            1,309            1,402            1,495            439               456               204               514                  58 Estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-41430-151 Health Insurance Premium CLERICAL 7,844            8,400            8,401            8,400            8,400            8,400            3,554            8,400               0 Monthly Allotment
100-41430-208 Training & Instruction CLERICAL -               255               -               -               180               500               -               500                  0
100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions CLERICAL -               -               18                 23                 45                 100               23                 100                  0

Total Clerical 74,280          58,602          60,298          62,900          64,120          66,946          26,604          40% 69,594             4% 2,648            
100-41435-260 Uniforms STAFF EXP -               -               -               200               246               300               -               300                  0
100-41435-310 Other Professional Services STAFF EXP 787               1,157            373               240               150               500               228               500                  0
100-41435-331 Travel Expenses STAFF EXP 1,277            589               750               953               2,026            2,000            86                 2,000               0

Total Staff Exp 3,290            1,746            1,124            1,393            2,422            2,800            314               11% 2,800               0% -               
100-41530-101 Full-Time Wages ACCNT 24,895          51,158          51,257          53,275          55,413          57,920          22,610          60,540             2,621
100-41530-121 PERA ACCNT 1,800            3,818            3,491            3,978            4,133            4,344            1,824            4,541               197
100-41530-122 FICA ACCNT 1,446            2,941            3,096            3,274            3,417            3,591            1,508            3,754               162
100-41530-123 Medicare ACCNT 338               688               724               766               799               840               353               878                  38
100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life ACCNT 348               980               820               1,035            507               527               232               587                  61 Estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-41530-151 Health Insurance Premium ACCNT 3,322            10,800          8,500            8,366            8,044            8,400            3,551            8,400               0 Monthly Allotment
100-41530-208 Training & Instruction ACCNT -               690               285               210               285               1,000            -               1,000               0
100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions ACCNT -               235               123               89                 50                 250               50                 200                  (50)
100-41530-310 Other Professional Services ACCNT 35,468          2,457            6,211            3,251            3,573            -               -               435                  435 No Audit Prep, Annual Disc. Report

Preliminary Levy Certification
2021 General Operating Expenditure Budget

49



Total Accnt 68,471          73,767          74,507          74,243          76,222          76,871          30,128          39% 80,335             5% 3,463            
100-41540-301 Auditing & Accounting AUDITING 23,400          29,243          24,065          21,050          22,150          22,000          18,150          22,000             0 Audit Costs

Total Auditing & Accounting 23,400          29,243          24,065          21,050          22,150          22,000          18,150          83% 22,000             0% -               
100-41550-310 Other Professional Services ASSESSING 17,772          17,828          18,942          20,610          21,091          23,000          166               24,000             1,000

Total Assesing 17,772          17,828          18,942          20,610          21,091          23,000          166               1% 24,000             4% 1,000            
100-41570-200 Office Supplies PURCHASING 3,146            3,077            2,581            2,681            1,764            3,500            1,146            3,500               0
100-41570-205 Bank Fees PURCHASING 49                 187               387               (15)               126               200               12                 200                  0
100-41570-207 Computer Supplies PURCHASING 3,092            5,876            11,453          5,256            6,560            8,000            3,306            8,000               0
100-41570-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply PURCHASING 2,367            3,670            2,751            3,927            4,445            4,500            1,988            4,500               0 Copier
100-41570-322 Postage PURCHASING 2,463            2,840            2,267            1,867            2,557            2,500            2                   2,500               0
100-41570-570 Office Equipment/Furniture PURCHASING 210               -               9,611            1,122            -               3,000            -               3,000               0

Total Purchasing 11,326          15,650          29,049          14,838          15,453          21,700          6,453            30% 21,700             0% -               
100-41600-310 Other Professional Services COMPUTER -               2,542            4,616            7,446            6,707            6,000            3,699            6,000               0

Total Computer 3,693            2,542            4,616            7,446            6,707            6,000            3,699            62% 6,000               0% -               
100-41610-304 Legal Fees ATTORNEY 18,947          25,247          21,223          12,540          14,230          20,000          3,395            20,000             0

Total Attorney 18,947          25,247          21,223          12,540          14,230          20,000          3,395            17% 20,000             0% -               
100-41910-310 Other Professional Services PLANNING & ZONING 19,945          24,771          25,492          27,194          29,638          20,000          5,224            20,000             0

Total Planning & Zoning 19,945          24,771          25,492          27,194          29,638          20,000          5,224            26% 20,000             0% -               
100-41940-210 Operating Supplies BLDG & GRNDS 617               1,567            1,080            -               1,871            3,000            -               3,000               0 Cleaning Supp, Garbage Bags, TP, Salt, etc.
100-41940-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply BLDG & GRNDS 9,461            10,286          7,361            9,192            6,301            6,000            2,087            6,000               0 Siren Maint, Fire Ext. Maint, etc.
100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions BLDG & GRNDS 250               250               250               620               525               550               775               850                  300 Liquor License, Drug Tests
100-41940-310 Other Professional Services BLDG & GRNDS 6,016            7,208            7,214            7,244            5,837            7,500            2,046            7,500               0 Cleaning Contract and Pest Control
100-41940-321 Telephone BLDG & GRNDS 3,282            3,139            4,204            7,918            4,431            6,400            2,126            5,400               (1,000) Comcast + B. Hagen Cell Phone + Digium
100-41940-325 Taxes BLDG & GRNDS 220               214               349               262               25                 400               272               400                  0 Outlot Prop. Taxes, Sales & Use Tax
100-41940-381 Electric Utilities BLDG & GRNDS 14,122          8,917            8,793            14,332          10,903          9,000            2,407            9,000               0 City Hall
100-41940-383 Gas Utilities BLDG & GRNDS 3,642            3,047            5,100            9,401            3,631            5,000            1,689            5,000               0 City Hall
100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposal BLDG & GRNDS 2,540            2,552            2,937            2,884            3,107            3,000            1,640            3,500               500 City Hall, FD
100-41940-415 Other Equipment Rental BLDG & GRNDS 121               -               -               -               -               -               -               -                   0
100-41940-520 Buildings & Structures BLDG & GRNDS 5,346            3,402            2,112            9,831            1,794            4,000            648               4,000               0
100-41940-560 Furniture & Fixtures BLDG & GRNDS 1,961            242               2,069            1,450            4,743            2,000            -               2,000               0
100-41940-580 Other Equipment BLDG & GRNDS 1,263            226               -               7,942            -               -               -               -                   0

Total Bldg & Grnds 48,842          41,048          41,468          71,076          43,169          46,850          13,690          29% 46,650             0% (200)             
100-41950-303 Engineering Fee ENGINEERING 23,493          25,659          16,135          14,179          24,550          15,000          6,389            15,000             0

Total Engineering 23,493          25,659          16,135          14,179          24,550          15,000          6,389            43% 15,000             0% -               
100-41960-150 Workers Comp Premium INSURANCE 259               8,543            9,376            14,254          13,130          13,000          5,087            13,500             500 Entire City Less Fire Department Estimate
100-41960-361 General Liability Insurance INSURANCE 24,785          19,245          21,536          21,498          23,660          25,000          10,001          25,000             0 Entire City Less Fire Department Estimate

Total Insur 25,045          27,788          30,912          35,753          36,790          38,000          15,088          40% 38,500             1% 500               
100-41970-341 Employment LEGAL PUB 435               274               362               -               146               300               495               300                  0
100-41970-343 Other Advertising LEGAL PUB -               39                 104               40                 119               200               43                 100                  (100) WC Journal Subscription
100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishing LEGAL PUB 768               1,814            337               274               227               2,000            31                 400                  (1,600)
100-41970-354 Recording Fees LEGAL PUB -               -               53                 166               53                 250               -               200                  (50)

Total Legal Pub 1,203            2,127            856               480               544               2,750            568               21% 1,000               -64% (1,750)          
100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursements DAMAGE DEPOSIT 11,079          3,416            -               -               12,650          9,000            1,600            10,000             1,000

Total Damage Deposit 11,079          3,416            -               -               12,650          9,000            1,600            18% 10,000             11% 1,000            
Total General Gov't 473,140        477,369        470,784        493,245        495,265        549,405        187,392        34% 540,804           -2% (8,601)          

Public Safety
100-42000-437 Other Misc PUBSAFTY 20                 -               20                 50                    50 Transient/Peddlers Background Checks

Total Other Misc -               -               -               -               20                 -               20                 #DIV/0! 50                    #DIV/0! 50                 
100-42101-310 Other Professional Services HC SHERIFF 69,333          71,405          78,731          81,096          82,716          84,368          21,092          86,100             1,732 Contract Price - approx 2% Increase per Year

Total HC Sheriff 69,333          71,405          78,731          81,096          82,716          84,368          21,092          25% 86,100             2% 1,732            
100-42102-310 Other Professional Services WC SHERIFF 95,900          99,168          105,708        110,171        110,961        114,558        47,733          119,682           5,124 Contract Price  

Total WC Sheriff 95,900          99,168          105,708        110,171        110,961        114,558        47,733          42% 119,682           4% 5,124            
100-42210-103 Part-Time Wages FIRE ADMIN 27,804          31,640          47,144          65,365          48,632          70,600          (1,814)          70,600             0
100-42210-122 FICA FIRE ADMIN 1,714            1,943            1,483            3,271            3,635            4,377            1,470            4,377               0
100-42210-123 Medicare FIRE ADMIN 401               454               347               765               850               1,024            344               1,024               0
100-42210-142 Unemployment Benefits FIRE ADMIN 22                                 -  275               168               -               300               -               300                  0

50



100-42210-150 Workers Comp Premium FIRE ADMIN 7,137            7,947            8,225            8,398            8,543            9,000            3,466            9,000               0 Estimate
100-42210-200 Office Supplies FIRE ADMIN 131               241               560               -               1,095            350               79                 350                  0
100-42210-305 Medical / Dental Fees FIRE ADMIN 4,735            4,567            2,644            2,497            577               4,000            577               8,500               4,500 2021 Added Yearly FF Physicals
100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions FIRE ADMIN 572               605               1,889            989               1,010            1,000            1,627            1,000               0
100-42210-361 General Liability Insurance FIRE ADMIN 2,370            4,743            5,248            3,973            3,548            5,000            1,512            5,000               0 Estimate

Total Fire Admin 45,125          52,140          67,816          85,426          67,890          95,651          7,261            8% 100,151           5% 4,500            
100-42220-221 Equipment Parts FIRE EQUIP 1,056            2,791            6,579            4,850            1,650            11,500          2,778            6,000               (5,500)
100-42220-228 Medical Supplies FIRE EQUIP 782               370               -               1,170            1,331            1,500            241               1,500               0
100-42220-240 Small Tools/Equipment FIRE EQUIP -               537               -               397               113               1,000            29                 1,000               0
100-42220-260 Uniforms FIRE EQUIP 10,864          7,559            12,699          16,285          15,756          28,500          640               28,500             0
100-42220-580 Other Equipment FIRE EQUIP 856               1,081            730               5,081            3,799            5,000            44                 5,000               0

Total Fire Equip 13,557          12,338          20,009          27,783          22,649          47,500          3,732            8% 42,000             -12% (5,500)          
100-42240-208 Training & Instruction FIRE TRG 8,869            4,162            6,078            4,869            7,007            7,500            588               7,500               0
100-42240-310 Other Professional Services FIRE TRG -               2,939            3,055            3,168            3,267            3,380            1,716            3,700               320 Contracted Renewal Cost
100-42240-331 Travel Expenses FIRE TRG 792               2,137            3,754            1,397            1,580            1,500            -               1,500               0

Total Fire Trg 9,661            9,238            12,886          9,434            11,854          12,380          2,304            19% 12,700             3% 320               
100-42260-212 Motor Fuels FIRE VEHICLE 3,146            2,362            2,302            3,164            2,149            3,000            408               3,000               0
100-42260-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply FIRE VEHICLE 7,855            11,402          9,144            3,954            3,586            9,000            1,382            6,000               (3,000)
100-42260-240 Small Tools/Equipment FIRE VEHICLE 198               322               25                 169               -               1,000            -               1,000               0
100-42260-323 Radio Units FIRE VEHICLE 5,035            8,481            3,439            11,145          6,516            7,800            37                 8,000               200

Total Fire Vehicle 16,235          22,567          14,911          18,432          12,251          20,800          1,827            9% 18,000             -13% (2,800)          
100-42280-215 Shop Supplies FIRE BLDG 189               416               177               617               508               800               -               800                  0
100-42280-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply FIRE BLDG 14,969          2,827            1,364            9,717            2,737            7,500            989               6,500               (1,000)
100-42280-321 Telephone FIRE BLDG 351               371               1,857            1,050            1,076            1,000            412               1,500               500
100-42280-325 Taxes FIRE BLDG -               -               -               -               -               -               -                   0
100-42280-381 Electric Utilities FIRE BLDG 3,636            3,861            3,859            4,178            3,740            4,500            1,204            4,500               0
100-42280-383 Gas Utilities FIRE BLDG 2,855            1,935            2,298            3,369            2,891            3,500            1,211            3,500               0
100-42280-520 Buildings & Structures FIRE BLDG 932               -               -               5,270            -                   0 KERI Card System

Total Fire Bldg 21,999          9,410            9,555            19,864          10,952          17,300          9,085            53% 16,800             -3% (500)             
100-42290-124 State Aid Pensions FRA 42,415          38,746          37,428          39,020          41,187          39,000          4,000            41,000             2,000 Pass Thru Fund
100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contributions FRA -               11,134          11,134          12,011          11,602          12,096          -               12,768             672 31% of Two Year's Prior State Aid Amount
100-42290-301 Auditing & Accounting FRA 6,580            6,100            6,200            6,250            6,250            6,250            -               6,250               0 Billed Hourly, This is Estimated

Total FRA 48,995          55,980          54,762          57,281          59,039          57,346          4,000            7% 60,018             5% 2,672            
100-42401-310 Other Professional Services BLDG INSP 53,391          54,669          39,212          38,238          37,436          40,000          10,110          40,000             0

Total Bldg Insp 53,391          54,669          39,212          38,238          37,436          40,000          10,110          25% 40,000             0% -               
100-42700-310 Other Professional Services ANIMAL CTRL 185               250               577               1,070            457               1,000            250               500                  (500)

Total Animal Ctrl 185               250               577               1,070            457               1,000            250               25% 500                  -50% (500)             
100-42800-310 Other Professional Services CEMETERY 50                 2,174            -               -               -               -               -                   0

Total Cemetery 50                 2,174            -               -               -               -               -               #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -               
Total Public Safety 374,432        389,338        404,167        448,795        416,225        490,903        107,414        22% 496,001           1% 5,098            

Public Works
100-43000-101 Full-Time Wages - Reg PUBLIC WORKS 98,608          107,097        111,190        150,035        157,705        146,116        56,279          140,372           (5,744) 3 FTE - With $25k Paid from Storm H2O 
100-43000-102 Full-Time Wages - OT PUBLIC WORKS 604               1,386            526               701               1,064            2,000            -               -                   (2,000)
100-43000-103 Part-Time Wages PUBLIC WORKS 5,170            13,080          11,292          11,811          13,035          28,360          963               28,360             0 2 Summer Help and 1 Temp. Snow Plow Driver
100-43000-121 PERA PUBLIC WORKS 7,730            8,095            8,059            11,248          11,857          12,834          4,552            12,403             (431)
100-43000-122 FICA PUBLIC WORKS 6,637            7,482            7,411            9,649            10,236          11,775          3,787            11,419             (356)
100-43000-123 Medicare PUBLIC WORKS 1,552            1,750            1,733            2,257            2,394            2,892            886               2,809               (83)
100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life PUBLIC WORKS 1,729            1,862            1,374            2,390            1,462            1,548            578               1,619               71 Estimate: Life + LTD/STD
100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefits PUBLIC WORKS 264               28                 1,865            7,058            -               -               -               -                   0
100-43000-151 Health Insurance Premiums PUBLIC WORKS 15,616          19,200          20,701          31,625          31,776          32,400          11,298          28,800             (3,600) 1 Family & 2 Single
100-43000-208 Training & Instruction PUBLIC WORKS 997               1,379            166               2,456            2,115            3,500            1,999            3,500               0
100-43000-212 Motor Fuels PUBLIC WORKS -               5,218            5,085            11,874          11,839          12,000          2,856            12,000             0 Fuel, Gas, Petroleum Tax
100-43000-215 Shop Supplies PUBLIC WORKS -               2,658            3,524            7,989            4,233            7,500            1,560            7,500               0
100-43000-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply PUBLIC WORKS 378               11,725          7,134            15,044          10,935          12,000          2,203            12,000             0
100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials PUBLIC WORKS -               1,252            943               377               645               1,500            66                 1,500               0
100-43000-240 Small Tools/Equipment PUBLIC WORKS -               2,576            6,505            3,925            3,676            10,000          530               10,000             0

51



100-43000-260 Uniforms PUBLIC WORKS -               1,316            2,225            2,266            2,865            3,000            -               3,000               0
100-43000-310 Other Professional Services PUBLIC WORKS -               18,696          13,075          5,455            6,115            7,500            3,865            7,500               0 Compost Contract & Fire System Monitoring
100-43000-321 Telephone PUBLIC WORKS 1,929            1,880            2,820            3,185            6,809            4,200            2,659            5,000               800 Cell Phones, Comcast + Digium
100-43000-325 Taxes PUBLIC WORKS 120               38                 118               20                 200               135               200                  0 Vehicle / Trailer Tabs
100-43000-381 Electric Utilities PUBLIC WORKS 4,798            4,000            1,686            5,000               1,000
100-43000-383 Gas Utilities PUBLIC WORKS 5,249            7,000            2,454            7,000               0
100-43000-520 Buildings & Structures PUBLIC WORKS 1,640            2,000            555               2,000               0 Crane Inspection

Total Public Works 152,107        206,800        205,666        279,465        290,466        312,325        98,910          32% 301,982           -3% (10,343)        
100-43121-224 Street Maintenance Materials PAVED STREETS 71,522          32,250          16,992          7,750            35,732          50,000          3,956            50,000             0

Total Paved Streets 75,755          32,250          16,992          7,750            35,732          50,000          3,956            8% 50,000             0% -               
100-43122-224 Street Maintenance Materials UNPAVED STREETS 10,403          11,179          12,639          6,505            7,138            15,000          -               15,000             0

Total Unpaved Streets 10,403          11,179          12,639          6,505            7,138            15,000          -               0% 15,000             0% -               
100-43125-224 Street Maintenance Materials SNOW/ICE 15,000          9,453            19,171          15,988          15,806          20,000          6,385            20,000             0

Total Snow/Ice 15,000          9,453            19,171          15,988          15,806          20,000          6,385            32% 20,000             0% -               
100-43160-381 Electric Utilities STREET LIGHTS 19,475          26,424          23,876          24,046          25,400          25,000          8,696            25,000             0

Total Street Lights 19,475          26,424          23,876          24,046          25,400          25,000          8,696            35% 25,000             0% -               
100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposal CITY CLEAN UP 1,784            2,073            -               3,448            2,675            3,000            -               3,000               0 Offest by Disposal Revenue

Total City Clean Up 1,784            2,073            -               3,448            2,675            3,000            -               0% 3,000               0% -               
100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Disposal RECYCLING 36,112          37,745          38,298          40,446          41,642          44,000          17,791          44,000             0 Residential Recycling Service

Total Recycling 36,112          37,745          38,298          40,446          41,642          44,000          17,791          40% 44,000             0% -               
Total Public Works 341,883        325,925        316,643        377,647        418,858        469,325        135,737        29% 458,982           -2% (10,343)        

Culture & Recreation
100-45186-437 Senior Center Contribution SENIOR CENTER 5,330            7,016            7,905            8,140            8,527            9,100            2,274            9,500               400 Provided by St. Michael

Total Senior Center Contribution 5,330            7,016            7,905            8,140            8,527            9,100            2,274            25% 9,500               4% 400               
100-45200-212 Motor Fuels PARKS -               1,478            1,214            1,933            2,026            2,000            188               2,000               0 Lawn Mower, Kubota, Toolcat Fuel
100-45200-220 Repair/Maintenance Supply PARKS 4,513            4,599            3,428            5,642            7,351            6,000            3,943            6,000               0 Mower Repairs, Park Equipment Maintenance
100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials PARKS 2,625            4,356            4,638            3,701            3,392            8,000            -               8,000               0 Wood Chips, Seed, Soil, Fertilizer, etc.
100-45200-310 Other Professional Services PARKS -               6,280            6,500            6,800            7,000            -               -               -                   0 FYCC Costs Moved to Gambling Fund
100-45200-381 Electric Utilities PARKS 2,054            2,265            2,981            2,071            1,849            2,200            895               2,200               0
100-45200-400 Repairs & Maintenance Contract PARKS 2,249            1,939            112               -               -               -               -               -                   0
100-45200-440 Programs PARKS 9,041            2,216            1,945            2,529            1,000            -               -               -                   0 Moved to Gambling Fund
100-45200-580 Other Equipment PARKS 7,190            7,606            4,070            4,188            5,903            8,000            362               5,000               (3,000) Porta Potty Cleaning, Replace Old Biff's

Total Parks 27,852          30,739          24,887          26,865          28,522          26,200          5,388            21% 23,200             -11% (3,000)          
100-45500-437 Contribution & Operation ROY SIMMS LIBRARY 5,250            10,428          11,240          10,638          10,863          11,600          4,655            16,200             4,600 $11K bond plus $5,174 operation

Total Roy Simms Library 5,250            10,428          11,240          10,638          10,863          11,600          4,655            40% 16,200             40% 4,600            
Total Culture & Rec 38,432          48,183          44,032          45,643          47,912          46,900          12,318          26% 48,900             4% 2,000            

Transfers Out
100-49360-700 Transfer Out GENERAL CAPITAL 250,000        -               -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out PARKS CAPITAL 148,570        -               -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out FIRE DEPT CAPITAL 52,300          31,000          74,151          45,814          73,811          -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out HISTORICAL FUND -               -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out CITY HALL FUND 74,093          -               -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out EQUIPMENT FUND 55,000          -               -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense
100-49360-700 Transfer Out STREET CAPITAL 369,000        150,000        204,357        -               -               -                   0 eliminated as an operating expense

Total Transfers Out 476,300        503,663        224,151        45,814          278,168        -               -               #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -               

Transit
100-49800-310 Other Professional Services TRANSIT 250               187               489               -               -               -               -                   0

Total Transit -               250               187               489               -               -               -               #DIV/0! -                   #DIV/0! -               

Total Fund Expend. 1,704,187     1,744,728     1,459,964     1,411,633     1,656,428     1,556,532     442,861        28% 1,544,687        -1% (11,846)        

Total Revenue Over Expenditures (125,848)      (318,698)      58,456          106,787        (51,145)        3,000            (357,039)      -11903% 0                      -100% -               

52



2021 Estimated Market Values
City of Corcoran 24.34%

City of Greenfield 17.42%
City of Hanover 45.49%

Rockford Township 12.76%
100.00%

Total Calls by Year 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 Total Average
City of Corcoran 34 50 43 44 23 194 38.8 20.77%

City of Greenfield 12 42 24 19 17 114 22.8 12.21%
City of Hanover 73 103 82 138 126 522 104 55.89%

Rockford Township 28 22 13 22 19 104 20.8 11.13%
147 217 162 223 185 934 186.80 100.00%

2021 Budget: 309,668.90 Total Budgeted Expenditures (General Fund, Bonds, Capital Transfer)
(41,000.00) State FRA Pension Contribution

$268,668.90 Amount to be allocated

Payment from City is based on dividing the budget in half and then determining costs based on Market Value and Total Calls.
MV % MV Pymt. CH % CH Pymt. Payment

City of Corcoran 24.34% 32,692.20 20.77% 27,902.44 60,594.65
City of Greenfield 17.42% 23,396.40 12.21% 16,396.28 39,792.68
City of Hanover 45.49% 61,106.18 55.89% 75,077.71 136,183.89
Rockford Township 12.76% 17,139.67 11.13% 14,958.01 32,097.68

100.00% 134,334.45 100.00% 134,334.45 268,668.90
134,334.45 134,334.45

2020 Payment Per City: 2021 Payment Per City: % Change
City of Corcoran $64,531.56 City of Corcoran $60,594.65 -6%
City of Greenfield $39,850.94 City of Greenfield $39,792.68 0%
City of Hanover $133,107.35 City of Hanover $136,183.89 2%
Rockford Township $34,487.05 Rockford Township $32,097.68 -7%

$271,976.90 $268,668.90

Fire Department Cost for Services Calculation

$89,610,800

$464,630,600

TOTAL
$218,586,700
$156,433,100

HC
$218,586,700

WC

$156,433,100

$898,187,400$433,556,800

$318,957,500
$114,599,300

$408,568,300
$114,599,300

53



Fund 
No. Account Description

2015 
Actual

2016 
Actual

2017 
Actual

2018 
Actual

2019 
Actual

2020 
Budget

2021 
Budget

%  
Change Comments

401 General 
402 Parks 25,000    25,000    25,000    25,000    25,000    
403 Fire Department 24,000    30,000    104,151  60,000    101,045  60,000    60,000    approx. 50% pd by contract entities
404 Historical Projects
407 TIF Redev. Dist #1
408 8th St. Project
411 Facilities -           
417 Equipment 55,000     65,000     52,348     15,000     20,000     50,000     50,000     
418 Street Project 190,000  215,000  310,000  152,880  169,806  275,000  451,000  

Total Revenue 269,000  310,000  491,499  252,880  315,851  410,000  586,000  43%

Capital Improvement Fund Levy Revenue

54



Acct No. Account Description
2016 

Actual
2017 

Actual
2018 

Actual
2019 

Budget
2020 

Budget
2021 

Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
311-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 38,604 42,688 41,256 39,821 43,638 0
311-33410 MV CREDIT
311-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 344 688 827 0 600 0
311-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS 289 (284) 35 0 0 0
311-39100 BOND PROCEEDS
311-39200 TRANSFERS IN

Total Revenue 39,238 43,092 42,119 39,821 44,238 0 -100%

Expenditure Accounts
311-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 30,000 30,000 30,000 35,000 35,000 35,000
311-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 8,338 7,320 6,210 4,973 3,607 2,243
311-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 425 495 495 495 495 495

Total Expenditures 38,763 37,815 36,705 40,468 39,102 37,738 -3%

Total Revenue Over Expenditure 475 5,277 5,414 (646) 5,136 (37,738) -835%

*Last payment made in 2022

City of Hanover

2008A GO CIP Refunding Bond Fund

Debt Services

55



Acct No. Account Description
2016 

Actual
2017 

Actual
2018 

Actual
2019 

Budget
2020 

Budget
2021 

Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
314-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 125,400 124,490 134,080 132,803 136,146 139,357
314-33410 MV CREDIT
314-36100 SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 62,387 43,450 41,318 35,000 25,538
314-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 5,559 5,717 7,474 6,000 0
314-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS (270) (2,168) (2,777) (2,000) 0
314-39100 BOND PROCEEDS
314-39200 TRANSFERS IN

Revenue Accounts 193,076 171,489 180,096 132,803 175,146 164,895 -6%

Expenditure Accounts
314-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 140,000 140,000 150,000 150,000 155,000 160,000
314-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 20,775 17,975 15,175 12,025 8,275 4,400
314-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 495 495 495 495 495 495

BALANCING (Fund 309 residuals)
Total Expenditures 161,270 158,470 165,670 162,520 163,770 164,895 1%

Total Revenue Over Expenditure 31,806 13,019 14,426 (29,717) 11,376 0 -100%

*Last payment made in 2021

2011 GO Improvement Crossover Refunding Bond Fund

City of Hanover
Debt Services

56



Acct No. Account Description
2016 

Budget
2017 

Actual
2018 

Actual
2019 

Budget
2020 

Budget
2021 

Budget
%  

Change
Revenue Accounts
315-31000 PROPERTY TAXES-CITY 110,036 105,236 109,636 108,510 107,384
315-36210 INTEREST EARNINGS 358 581 450 0
315-36215 INVESTMENT INCOME/LOSS (175) 115 0 0
315-39100 BOND PROCEEDS
315-39200 TRANSFERS IN

Revenue Accounts -$               110,219$   105,932$   109,636$   108,960$   107,384$   -1%

Expenditure Accounts
315-47000-601 DS: PRINCIPAL 0 60,000 60,000 65,000 65,000
315-47000-611 DS: INTEREST 24,249 40,630 39,820 38,879 37,806
315-47000-620 DS: FISCAL AGENT FEES 0 495 495 0

Total Expenditures -$               24,249$     100,630$   100,315$   104,374$   102,806$   -2%

Total Revenue Over Expenditure -$               85,970$     5,302$       9,321$       4,586$       4,577$       0%

City of Hanover
Debt Services

2016 GO Public Works Building Bond

57



Acct No. Account Description
2016 

Actual
 2017 

Actual 
 2018 

Actual 
 2019 

Budget 
 2020 

Budget 
 2021 

Budget 
%  

Change

Expenditure Accounts
602-47000-601 PRINCIPAL 95,000 98,000       100,000     102,000     95,000       -             
602-47000-611 INTEREST 11,221 9,046         6,801         4,511         2,176         -             

Total Expenditures 106,221 107,046     106,801     106,511     97,176       -             -100%

*last payment made in 2020

Total Debt Services Expenditures 306,254     327,580     409,806     409,814     404,421     305,439     25%
Total Debt Services Tax Revenues 164,004 277,214 280,572 282,260 288,293 246,741 2%

Total Debt Services Non-Tax Revenues 68,309 47,587 47,575 0 40,050 25,538 -100%
Total Debt Expenditures Paid by Levy 200,033     220,534     303,005     303,303     307,246     305,439     38%

City of Hanover

Minnesota PFA Loan

Debt Services

58



STATE of MINNESOTA Return by: September ____, 2020
COUNTY of WRIGHT City Taxes Voted
CITY OF HANOVER

To the Auditor of Wright County:  I hereby certify that the Council for the City of Hanover, Counties of Wright and Hennepin, Minnesota, did at  
a meeting on September ____, 2020 levy the following amount to be raised by taxation for the City of Hanover for the payable year 2021.

2020 Budget 
Requirement 2020 LGA

2020 Other 
Resources 2020 Tax Levy #  Fund

2021 Budget 
Requirement 2021 LGA

2021 Other 
Resources

2021 Certified 
Levy

1,303,555      124,773         167,909         1,010,873      5 Rev 1,295,018      126,286         174,509         994,223         
250,977         39,000           107,573         104,404         7 Fire Prot. 249,669         41,000           102,898         105,771         
307,246         18,952           288,293         19 Debt Services 305,439         58,698           246,741         
410,000         31,297           378,703         26 Capital Improv. 586,000         29,587           556,413         

2,271,778 163,773 325,731 1,782,274 Total 2,436,126      167,286         365,692         1,903,147      

Dated this ____th day of September, 2020

PRELIMINARY LEVY CERTIFIED

2020 Final 2021 Preliminary

Brian Hagen, City Administrator

59



Preliminary Levy Certification 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Capacity 2,367,113 2,385,758 2,644,071 2,850,350 3,002,592 3,347,361 3,637,226 3,853,739 4,103,739
Levy 1,268,286 1,268,280 1,308,954 1,410,972 1,486,286 1,544,804 1,647,006 1,782,274 1,903,147
Rate 53.58% 53.16% 49.51% 49.50% 49.50% 46.15% 45.28% 46.25% 46.38%

40.00%

42.00%

44.00%

46.00%

48.00%

50.00%

52.00%

54.00%

56.00%

0

500,000

1,000,000

1,500,000

2,000,000

2,500,000

3,000,000

3,500,000

4,000,000

4,500,000

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

Capacity Levy Rate

60



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-1 
 

Preface  
Pandemics are remarkable events in that they affect all parts of the world, regardless of socio-economic 
status or standards of health care, hygiene, and sanitation. This pandemic will place extraordinary and 
sustained demands on local public health and medical care systems, as well as providers of essential 
services in communities.  
 
The City of Hanover, in response to information from the World Health Organization, State of 
Minnesota, the City has developed the COVID19 Pandemic Supplement to the City of Hanover 
Emergency Operations Plan. Emergency preparation is a continuum and planning efforts will always be 
evolving. As new information arises and lessons are learned through tests/exercises, this annex will be 
will be updated as necessary.   
 
The City will follow the recommendations from the Minnesota Department of Health on strategies to 
slow the spread of the COVID19 virus in Minnesota. Plan can be found at: 
https://www.health.state.mn.us/diseases/coronavirus/action.html  
 
The City will also follow guidance from the Wright and Hennepin County Public Health Departments 
and the Center for Disease Control.  The City will work in cooperation with Wright and Hennepin County 
Public Health and Wright and Hennepin County Emergency Management to address issues within 
Wright and Hennepin Counties as they arise. 

 
City of Hanover’s Primary Objectives 
The City of Hanover Pandemic Supplement has five (5) primary objectives:  

 
1. Maximize the protection of life and property in Hanover. 
2. Ensure that the response effort be organized under the National Incident Management System 

(NIMS). 
3. Delineate roles and responsibilities for other local governmental and non-governmental agencies 

participating in the response. 
4. Assure that the City of Hanover Pandemic Influenza Supplement is coordinated and consistent with 

the Wright and Hennepin County Public Health Departments, MDH Pandemic Influenza Plan, and 
the plans of other local public health departments in the state. 

5. Assure that the City of Hanover Pandemic Influenza Supplement is coordinated with the Wright and 
Hennepin County Public Health Departments and their pandemic influenza response activities 
identified in the Wright and Hennepin County Emergency Operations Plans. 

 
BACKGROUND 
According to the Centers for Disease Control: 

Coronaviruses are a large family of viruses that are common in people and many different species of 
animals, including camels, cattle, cats, and bats. Rarely, animal coronaviruses can infect people and 
then spread between people such as with MERS-CoV, SARS-CoV, and now with this new virus (named 
SARS-CoV-2). 

61

https://www.health.state.mn.us/diseases/coronavirus/action.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/mers/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/sars/index.html


CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-2 
 

The SARS-CoV-2 virus is a betacoronavirus, like MERS-CoV and SARS-CoV.  All three of these viruses 
have their origins in bats. The sequences from U.S. patients are similar to the one that China initially 
posted, suggesting a likely single, recent emergence of this virus from an animal reservoir. 

Early on, many of the patients at the epicenter of the outbreak in Wuhan, Hubei Province, China had 
some link to a large seafood and live animal market, suggesting animal-to-person spread. Later, a 
growing number of patients reportedly did not have exposure to animal markets, indicating person-to-
person spread. Person-to-person spread was subsequently reported outside Hubei and in countries 
outside China, including in the United States. Some international destinations now have ongoing 
community spread with the virus that causes COVID-19, as do some parts of the United States. 
Community spread means some people have been infected and it is not known how or where they 
became exposed. Learn what is known about the spread of this newly emerged coronaviruses. 

How COVID-19 Spreads 
Person-to-person spread 
 

• The virus is thought to spread mainly from person-to-person.  
• Between people who are in close contact with one another (within about 6 feet). 
• Through respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes. These 

droplets can land in the mouths or noses of people who are nearby or possibly be inhaled into 
the lungs. 

 
Can someone spread the virus without being sick? 
 

• People are thought to be most contagious when they are most symptomatic (the sickest). 
• Some spread might be possible before people show symptoms; there have been reports of this 

occurring with this new coronavirus, but this is not thought to be the main way the virus 
spreads. 

• Spread from contact with contaminated surfaces or objects 
 
It may be possible that a person can get COVID-19 by touching a surface or object that has the virus on 
it and then touching their own mouth, nose, or possibly their eyes, but this is not thought to be the 
main way the virus spreads. 
How easily the virus spreads 
 
How easily a virus spreads from person-to-person can vary. Some viruses are highly contagious (spread 
easily), like measles, while other viruses do not spread as easily. Another factor is whether the spread 
is sustained, spreading continually without stopping. 
 
The virus that causes COVID-19 seems to be spreading easily and sustainably in the community 
(“community spread”) in some affected geographic areas. 
 

62

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-in-us.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/travelers/index.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/transmission.html


CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-3 
 

COVID-19 cases in the U.S. 
Severity 

The complete clinical picture with regard to COVID-19 is not fully known. Reported illnesses have 
ranged from very mild (including some with no reported symptoms) to severe, including illness 
resulting in death. While information so far suggests that most COVID-19 illness is mild, a 
reportexternal icon out of China suggests serious illness occurs in 16% of cases. Older people and 
people of all ages with severe chronic medical conditions — like heart disease, lung disease and 
diabetes, for example — seem to be at higher risk of developing serious COVID-19 illness. 

Learn more about the symptoms associated with COVID-19. 

COVID-19 Now a Pandemic 
A pandemic is a global outbreak of disease. Pandemics happen when a new virus emerges to infect 
people and can spread between people sustainably. Because there is little to no pre-existing immunity 
against the new virus, it spreads worldwide. 

The virus that causes COVID-19 is infecting people and spreading easily from person-to-person. Cases 
have been detected in most countries worldwide and community spread is being detected in a growing 
number of countries. On March 11, the COVID-19 outbreak was characterized as a pandemic by the 
WHOexternal icon. 

This is the first pandemic known to be caused by the emergence of a new coronavirus. In the past 
century, there have been four pandemics caused by the emergence of novel influenza viruses. As a 
result, most research and guidance around pandemics is specific to influenza, but the same premises 
can be applied to the current COVID-19 pandemic. Pandemics of respiratory disease follow a certain 
progression outlined in a “Pandemic Intervals Framework.” Pandemics begin with an investigation 
phase, followed by recognition, initiation, and acceleration phases. The peak of illnesses occurs at the 
end of the acceleration phase, which is followed by a deceleration phase, during which there is a 
decrease in illnesses. Different countries can be in  

SCOPE 
The Wright and Hennepin County Public Health Departments (WHCPHDS) are the lead public health 
agencies for emergency response in Wright and Hennepin Counties.  The mission of the Wright and 
Hennepin County Public Health Departments is to promote and protect the health of residents through 
education, prevention services, regulation and advocacy. The department fosters a partnership with 
many organizations and community groups to address and resolve health issues and concerns. 
 
The MDH is the lead public health agency in the state and is responsible for protecting, maintaining, 
and improving the health of all Minnesotans. There is a strong state-local partnership, where the MDH 
provides leadership to local public health departments and private healthcare entities.  
 

63

https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/cases-in-us.html
https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/NEJMoa2002032
https://www.nejm.org/doi/full/10.1056/NEJMoa2002032
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/specific-groups/high-risk-complications.html
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/about/symptoms.html
https://www.who.int/dg/speeches/detail/who-director-general-s-opening-remarks-at-the-media-briefing-on-covid-19---11-march-2020
https://www.who.int/dg/speeches/detail/who-director-general-s-opening-remarks-at-the-media-briefing-on-covid-19---11-march-2020
https://www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/php/pandemic-preparedness-resources.html


CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-4 
 

AUTHORITY 
Chapter 12 of Minnesota Statutes grants the Governor and Homeland Security Emergency 
Management (HSEM) overall responsibility of preparing for and responding to emergencies and 
disasters. Chapter 12 directs the Governor and HSEM to develop and maintain a comprehensive state 
emergency operations plan, known as the Minnesota Emergency Operations Plan (MEOP). 
 
Furthermore, Minnesota Statutes, including Minnesota Chapter 12 (Minnesota Emergency 
Management Act), Minnesota Chapter 144 (General Duties of the Commissioner of Health), and 
Minnesota Chapter 145A (Powers and Duties of a Community Health Boards), outline the authorities 
of local public health departments and grant the Commissioner of Health broad authority to protect, 
maintain, and improve the health of the public.  

 
CONCEPT OF OPERATIONS 
The City of Hanover COVID19 Pandemic Annex is a supplement of the City of Hanover Emergency 
Operations Plan.  

 
This plan will establish the organizational framework for the activation and management of City of 
Hanover operations that may be implemented in response to COVID19 and directives issued by the 
State of Minnesota and the Centers for Disease Control. 
 
PLANNING ASSUMPTIONS 
For planning purposes, the worst-case scenario for a pandemic is projected. The response to the 
pandemic will be adjusted if the situation does not fully warrant worst-case scenario projections.  
 
The following assumptions are made:  
 
A. General Preparedness 

The City of Hanover will use the National Incident Management System (NIMS) as a basis for 
supporting, responding to, and managing plan response activities. 

 
1. Events may: 

a. Occur at any time. 
b. Require significant communications and information sharing across jurisdictions and 

between the public and private sectors. 
c. Involve multiple geographic areas. 
d. Impact critical infrastructures. 
e. Overwhelm the capabilities of local governments. 
f. Require short-notice asset coordination and response timelines. 
g. Require prolonged, sustained incident management operations and support activities. 

 
2. The City has planned and prepared for emergencies locally and is prepared to take proactive 

steps to address this pandemic and the continuity of operations for City services.  
 

64



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-5 
 

Pandemic Specific Preparedness 
The World Health Organization and Center for Disease Control has identified COVID19 as a pandemic. 
Basic assumptions about this pandemic are: 
 
1. Has the potential to impact everyone involved, including responders. 
2. Emergency response systems will not be able to assist all individuals during this pandemic event. 
3. Preparedness is essential for a successful response. 
4. Assistance from outside organizations will be limited if the outbreak is nationwide. 
5. A percentage of the workforce will be too sick to come to work at some point during the pandemic. 

Rates of absenteeism will likely occur during the weeks before and after a pandemic when 
employees may stay home to care for ill family members or out of fear of infection at work. 

6. Critical functions have been identified and staff will need to be cross-trained to maintain critical 
functions. 

7. The City will follow the medical guidelines for isolation and quarantine of individuals. 
8. Hospitals and clinics may be overwhelmed by the number of individuals requiring care and may 

require first responders to change their current protocol for bringing in patients.  
9. Families will need to assume responsibility for the care of family members (with mild to moderate 

pandemic influenza) in their homes due to a limited availability of hospital beds.  This will impact 
the available workforce. 

10. Closing schools and child care centers in the area may have a significant impact on the availability 
of the workforce.  As of March 16, 2020, the Governor has provided directives to school districts on 
managing education for K-12. The State of Minnesota is encouraging day care providers to remain 
open as long as children are healthy. 

11. Alternatives methods may be needed for people to continue to work and learn, such as doing this 
at home. 

12. The City encourages sick employees to stay home. 
13.  All businesses in Hanover has the responsibility to evaluate and implement procedures (such as 

shifts, spacing, personal protective equipment (PPE)) to protect employees from increased 
exposure risk. 

 
Plan Components 
Critical services that must continue are: 
 
1. Protection of life and property (emergency response)  
2. Continuation of water distribution and sewage treatment without disruption 
3. Plowing of city streets for first responders  
4. City Council meetings (Minn. Stat. § 13D.021 permit these meetings to happen via telephone or 

other electronic means if it is “not practical or prudent because of a health pandemic” to meet in 
person) 

5. Elections unless suspended by the State of Minnesota 
6. Staffing of an EOC to ensure ability to respond to incidents 
 
Important Services to continue are: 

65



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-6 
 

1. Preparation, mailing and collection of utility bills (this includes remote meter reading) 
2. Building Inspection Services 
3. Issuing Building Permits 
4. Payroll and Accounts Payable 
5. Administration of Cemetery Burials 
 
All other functions are non-essential and will only be delivered if staffing levels permit it.  
 
Employee Illness: If an employee is ill or has been exposed to the COVID19 virus they must stay home. 
If an employee has been in contact with someone who is suspected of having the virus, they should 
report this information to their supervisor and stay home until the pandemic virus has been ruled out 
for the original contact person or them.  
 
The current recommendation for self-isolation is currently 14 days. If an employee has no vacation, 
comp time, floating holiday, or sick leave balance, they will be able to run a deficient sick leave balance 
until the pandemic has been declared over or a healthcare professional has cleared them to return to 
work. The City’s personnel policy on donation of sick leave will be temporarily opened up to cover 
COVID19 absences.  (See Personnel Policy Section 400.14). 
 
Employees deemed to be essential or critical can work from home depending upon technology 
availability and a safe, secure connection to the City’s server as determined by GuidancePoint 
Technologies. The City is working with GuidancePoint Technologies on loading computers with the 
remote VPN needed to work from home with a secure connection. When working at home, the City 
computer usage policies will still apply during the employee’s work at home hours. Employees shall 
email begin and end times to their supervisor for inclusion on their electronic timecard. 
 
If an employee is out of leave time, the City will continue to pay the City’s share of the health insurance 
premium and the employee will be responsible for their share of the premium. During this time, the 
City will provide full benefits as if the employee is working the prescribed hours or accounting for hours 
worked with applicable sick, vacation or compensatory time. 
 
As always, a supervisor has the authority to require an ill employee to leave the workplace as a safety 
consideration for the health of other employees. With respect to COVID19, symptoms are respiratory 
in nature and may include fever, cough, and shortness of breath. The City will work with all essential 
employees on how leave is paid for. 
 
Change in Operations 
Employees are expected to follow the basic guidelines issued by the Minnesota Department of Health: 
 
• Use social distancing (maintain a distance from those who are ill) 
• Wash your hands for 20 seconds after using the restroom, before punching in and punching out, 

before eating and after blowing your nose 
• Use disinfectants to wipe down common area work surfaces daily.  

66



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-7 
 

• Fire will increase the use of PPE (gloves, mask, face shield) when needed (e.g. extrication, arrests 
or other close contact) 

• City Hall offices will be closed to the public until further notice. 
• Public Works offices will be closed to the public until further notice. 
• Available PPE will be made available to staff at each building location. 
• Residents, contractors, etc. are encouraged to use the dedicated drop box outside of City Hall for 

exchanging materials with staff.  Any payments to the City are encouraged to be completed via the 
USPS mail system or other delivery or via the drop box when staff are present for an immediate 
exchange. 

• The City Administrator or designated staff will provide updates to the City Council as operations of 
the City change. 

 
Potential Change in Operations 
• Fire Department will enact a temporary SOG specific to emergency operations to ensure public 

safety 
• City staff will only mail permits instead of having contractors come to City Hall to pick them up. 
• Park Board and EDA meetings will be cancelled. 
• Planning Commission meetings will be handled via telephone, Facebook Live, or another meeting 

room application if an application needs a public hearing and action within the 60-day timeline. 
• The Council will need to address City hosted functions.  I.e. Park Board and EDA events. 
• Other actions deemed necessary by the City Administrator. 

 
Authentication 
 
March 23, 2020         ____________________    
Date     Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
  

67



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-8 
 

ADDEMDUM #1 
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of Addendum #1 is to outline known changes in City of Hanover operations following 
Governor Walz’s Emergency Executive Order 20-20 (Order), Directing Minnesotans to Stay at Home 
beginning March 27, 2020 at 11:59 pm. 
 
Background: 
Under the Order, it is determined that operations conducted by local governments are a critical sector.  
Therefore, employees and representatives of the City of Hanover are deemed exempted from the order 
and allowed to respond to their work duties.  Relevant to Hanover, the Order exempts first responders, 
water and wastewater, public works and other community-based government operations and essential 
functions.  The Order further determines all political subdivisions of the State will determine the 
minimum personnel necessary to maintain these government operations. 
 
Plan Components: 
Critical services that must continue are: 
1. Protection of life and property (emergency response) 
2. Continuation of water distribution and wastewater treatment without disruption 
3. Plowing of city streets for first responders 
4. City Council meetings (Minn. Stat. § 13D.021 permit these meetings to happen via telephone or 

other electronic means if it is “not practical or prudent because of a health pandemic” to meet in 
person) 

5. Elections unless suspended 
6. Planning and Zoning, including processing of permits and inspection services 
7. Staffing of an EOC to ensure ability to respond to incidents 
8. Applicable State mandates (i.e. audit, LBAE, reporting deadlines) 
 
Change in Operations: 
During the time in which the Order is in effect, the following outlines the City of Hanover Operations: 
• Applicable staff as determined by the City Administrator shall ensure the critical services of the City 

are completed. 
• The Hanover Fire Department will continue to respond to emergency calls in accordance with City 

Policies and Department SOG’s including any applicable temporary SOG’s implemented by the Fire 
Chief. 

• Public Works employees shall rotate duties to complete essential tasks of the department.  The 
rotation shall be one employee responsible for a one-week period.  The rotation is to be determined 
by the Public Works Supervisor.  Essential tasks include: 
o Monitoring City Facilities two times per week.  Tuesday and Friday 
 Internal and external inspections as necessary 

o Monitoring general road conditions two times per week. Tuesday and Friday 
 Inspections as necessary 

 

68



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-9 
 

o Monitoring park facilities two times per week. Tuesday and Friday 
 Including emptying of refuse containers 

o Report any issues to the Public Works Supervisor and City Administrator in order to determine 
necessary course of action. 

o Perform tasks with respect to the above facilities at direction of City Administrator 
• Administrative Staff shall complete duties necessary to ensure the following are completed: 

o City Council agenda packets are complete and available for review.  This includes preparation 
to conduct the City Council meetings in a virtual setting as established in Minn. Stat. § 13D.021 

o Planning Commission packets are completed and available for review when necessary due to 
statutory regulations as it relates to land use applications and the required review period.  This 
includes preparation to conduct the Planning Commission meetings in a virtual setting as 
established in Minn. Stat. § 13D.021 

o Accounts payable, accounts receivable, payroll and other necessary financial services are 
completed. 

o Planning and zoning administration shall occur as established for work deemed critical sector 
under the Order. 

o Planning and Zoning administration. 
 City Hall staffed on Tuesday and Friday 

• All staff is considered essential to the operations of the city.  Staff shall work remotely when there 
is technology availability.  Staff not able to work remotely, are not required to report to the office 
unless deemed necessary by the City Administrator, and shall perform duties as directed by the City 
Administrator.  All employees are expected to remain available to respond to an emergency 
situation at any point in which the Order is in effect.  It is recognized that should an employee 
become ill and unable to perform their duties, other employees will assist in ensuring critical 
services are completed. 

 
  

69



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-10 
 

ADDEMDUM #2 
 
Purpose: 
The purpose of Addendum #2 is to outline known changes in City of Hanover operations following 
Governor Walz’s Emergency Executive Order 20-74 (Order), requiring critical sector businesses, 
including government entities, to adopt a COVID-19 Prepared Plan. 
 
As City operations are in full service, this plan outlines guidance on how a safe and healthy workplace 
will be provided for both our workers and customers.  The goal is to mitigate the potential for 
transmission of COVID-19 within the workplace.  Our COVID-19 Preparedness Plan follows State of 
Minnesota Industry Guidance, Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) Guidelines, federal 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) standards and applicable executive orders.  The 
plan addresses the following: 
 
Plan Components: 
1. employee illness; 
2. social distancing; 
3. worker hygiene and source controls; 
4. workplace building and ventilation protocols; 
5. workplace cleaning and disinfecting protocols; 
6. drop-off, pick-up and delivery practices and protocols; 
7. communications, training and supervision practices and protocols; 
8. what customers and clients can do to minimize transmissions; 
9. additional protections and protocols for receiving and exchanging payment; 
10. additional protections and protocols for managing occupancy; 
11. additional protections and protocols to limit face-to-face interactions; and 
12. additional protections and protocols for distancing and barriers 
 
 
1.  Employee illness 
Workers are encouraged to self-monitor for signs and symptoms of COVID-19.  If a worker suspects 
they may be infected with COVID-19, they must contact their supervisor prior to arriving to the 
workplace or immediately if symptom onset occurs during prescribed work hours. 
 
If an employee is ill or has been exposed to the COVID19 virus they must stay home. If an employee 
has been in contact with someone who is suspected of having the virus, they should report this 
information to their supervisor and stay home until the pandemic virus has been ruled out for the 
original contact person or them.  
 
The current recommendation for self-isolation is currently 14 days. If an employee has no vacation, 
comp time or sick leave balance, they will be able to run a deficient sick leave balance until the 
pandemic has been declared over or a healthcare professional has cleared them to return to work. The 

70



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-11 
 

City’s personnel policy on donation of sick leave will be temporarily opened up to cover COVID19 
absences.  (See Personnel Policy Section 400.14). 
 
Employees can work from home depending upon technology availability and a safe, secure connection 
to the City’s server as determined by GuidancePoint Technologies. The City is working with 
GuidancePoint Technologies on loading computers with the remote VPN needed to work from home 
with a secure connection. When working at home, the City computer usage policies will still apply 
during the employee’s work at home hours. 
 
If an employee is out of leave time, the City will continue to pay the City’s share of the health insurance 
premium and the employee will be responsible for their share of the premium. During this time, the 
City will provide full benefits as if the employee is working the prescribed hours or accounting for hours 
worked with applicable sick, vacation or compensatory time. 
 
As always, a supervisor has the authority to require an ill employee to leave the workplace as a safety 
consideration for the health of other employees. With respect to COVID19, symptoms are respiratory 
in nature and may include fever, cough, and shortness of breath. The City will work with all employees 
on how leave is paid for. 
 
2.  Social distancing 
Social distancing equal to or greater than six feet of separation is practiced where plausible.  Customers 
may utilize the City Hall entry area, hallway or Community Hall to provide separation.  Staff will 
acknowledge customer presence and call to assist in the order they arrive. 
 
3. Worker hygiene and source controls 
Employees shall wash hands for 20 seconds after using the restroom, before punching in and punching 
out, before eating and after blowing your nose.  Available PPE will be present to staff at each building 
location.  Customers are provided sanitized pens and a “used” pen discard spot for sanitizing after 
customer use.   
 
4. Workplace building and ventilation protocols; 
Inspection and maintenance of the building systems will be conducted regularly.  Windows will be 
opened to provide fresh air exchange, weather permitting. 

 
5. Workplace cleaning and disinfecting protocols; 
High touch points throughout the buildings will be sanitized daily.  The Community Hall and Park Shelter 
will be cleaned and sanitized after each rental use.  The City will instruct the contracted cleaning 
company to provide additional sanitization to tables and chairs not normally included in the cleaning 
requirements.  The added cost of this service is to be paid for by the renter. 
 
 
 
 

71



CITY OF HANOVER  ANNEX Q1 
  COVID 19 PLAN 
EMERGENCY OPERATIONS PLAN  LAST UPDATED:  June 16, 2020 
 

 

Annex Q-12 
 

6. Drop-off, pick-up and delivery practices; 
Exchanging of items will be conducted with minimal back and forth touching of packages or items.   
Packages shall be set on the floor to be grabbed by staff after delivery person has left in order to 
practice social distancing. 
 
7. Communications, training and supervision practices and protocols; 
The plan is provided to all employees and customers for review.  Employees and customers are 
encouraged to ask questions to clarify the change in operations.  Department heads shall monitor and 
encourage safe practices implemented and recommend adjustments to the plan when needed. 
 
8. What customers and clients can do to minimize transmissions; 
Customers and Clients may utilized mail delivery of items to conduct business with the City.  They can 
utilize our facilities to wash hands and if available, use provided hand sanitizer.  When possible, 
electronic forms of communication shall be utilized for correspondence. 
 
9. Protections and protocols for receiving and exchanging payment; 
The city is not equipped to accept electronic forms of payment.  Customers are encouraged to pay with 
exact cash amount or use checks in order to reduce the number of exchanges for payment. 
 
10. Protections and protocols for managing occupancy; 
The City will follow current guidelines as to occupancy limits for the building.  If staff feel occupancy 
limits are reached, customers would be provided with a number to hold a place in line and asked to 
wait outside or in their vehicle. 
 
11. Protections and protocols to limit face-to-face interactions; and 
When possible, electronic forms of communication shall be utilized for correspondence.  This may 
included conference calls, email correspondence, or virtual meeting platforms. 
 
12. Protections and protocols for distancing and barriers 
Barrier shields will be implemented in high staff/customer interaction areas.  I.e. City Hall counter, 
election judge work stations.  Spacing indicators will be implemented during high use events. 
 
 
 

72


	ADP7BE8.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  June 12, 2020
	Re:  Review of June 16, 2020 City Council Agenda

	06-16-20 Claims.pdf
	06-16-20 Payments
	06-16-20 Check Register Summary
	06-16-20 Cons
	06-16-20 Cash Balance
	06-16-20 Revenues
	06-16-20 Expenditures

	ADPD765.tmp
	JULY 22, 2020

	2021 Preliminary Budget - DRAFT 1.pdf
	Gen. Fund Rev.
	Gen. Fund Exp.
	FD Contract
	Capital Improv. Levy
	Debt Service
	Prelim. Levy
	Tax Rate

	ADPB013.tmp
	City of Hanover’s Primary Objectives
	Background
	According to the Centers for Disease Control:
	COVID-19 cases in the U.S.


	Severity
	COVID-19 Now a Pandemic
	Scope
	Authority
	Concept of Operations
	Planning Assumptions
	A. General Preparedness
	The World Health Organization and Center for Disease Control has identified COVID19 as a pandemic. Basic assumptions about this pandemic are:


	ADPE1DF.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  June 12, 2020
	Re:  Review of June 16, 2020 City Council Agenda




